
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
30 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 

AGENDA 

April 15, 2019 
Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm 

 

∗ Public comment will be permitted at the time of the discussion of the agenda items marked with an asterisk (*). The content and timing rules applicable 
to public comment at the opening of the Council Meeting shall also apply to comments on agenda items. Such public comment shall be permitted only 
after each of Town Council has been provided the opportunity to discuss the respective agenda item. 

    

  Pg # Presenter 

    
1. Call to Order ...........................................................................................................................  Mayor Root 
    
2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda ..................................................................................  Mayor Root 
    
3. Approval of Minutes ……………………………………………………………………………………..………............  Mayor Root 
 A. February 25, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting ........................................................... 1  
 B. March 18, 2019 Town Council Special Meeting ……………………………………………………………. 5  
 C. March 18, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting …………………………………………………………… 6  

    
4. Special Recognitions ..............................................................................................................  Mayor Root 
    
5. General Public Comments …........……………………………………………...…………………………..............  Mayor Root 
    
6. Consent Agenda .....................................................................................................................  Town Manager 

 A. Proclamation Honoring the Weaverville Lions Club 70th Anniversary ............................... 11  
 B. Monthly Tax Report ........................................................................................................... 13  
 C. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update ............................................................................. 15  
 D. Road Closures: Music on Main and July 4 Celebration ...................................................... 16  
 E. Approval of Audit Contract ................................................................................................ 19  
 F. Resolution Authorizing Credit Card Payments …………………............................................... 33  
    
7. Town Manager’s Report ........................................................................................................ 36 Town Manager 
    
8. Discussion & Action Items   

 A. Presentation of Proposed Budget * .................................................................................. 38 Town Manager 
 B. Personnel Related Policies * ............................................................................................. 51 Town Manager & 

Town Attorney 
 C. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement for Fire Departments *............................................ 64 Town Attorney & 

Fire Chief 
 D. Riverside Stump Dump Annexation and Initial Zoning – Certificate of Sufficiency,         

Set Public Hearing on Annexation and Zoning for 6pm on May 20, 2019 …..…………………. 
69 Town Clerk & 

Planning Director 
 E. Conditional Zoning District for 37 Brown Street – Set Public Hearing  

for 6 pm on May 20, 2019 ……………………………………………………………………………………………. 
80 Planning Director 

 F. Quarterly Report: Planning ............................................................................................... 91 Planning Director 
 G. Quarterly Report: Finance ……………………………………………………………………………………………. 102 Finance Director 
    
9. Adjournment ………………………………………………………......……………………………………………............  Mayor Root 

  



 

 
Page 1 of 4  February 25, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

                       

                        MINUTES 
Town of Weaverville    Town Council Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, February 25, 2019 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, February 25, 2019, at 
7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, 
Councilman Jeffrey McKenna, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Town 
Clerk Derek Huninghake, Police Chief Alan Wyatt, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Public Works 
Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Councilman Nagle made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilman McKenna seconded and all voted 
in favor of the motion. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

Town Manager Coffey recommended  to Town Council a change to comments by Doug Theroux on page 16 for the 
January 28, 2019 Town Council meeting minutes to say, “the lot sizes are only 29 feet wide with 5 foot setbacks, so 
the home can only be 19 feet wide”. Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to approve the minutes from 
January 8, 2019 Town Council Special-Called Meeting as presented and January 28, 2019 Town Council Regular 
Meeting with the aforementioned revisions as recommended. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion and all 
voted in favor on the approval of the minutes. 
 

4. General Public Comment 
Public comments were received as follows: 
Thomas Veasey, 69 Lakeshore Dr., hopes that a commercial kitchen will be added to the new community center. He 
mentioned that he heard businesses were worried that with a commercial kitchen being added to the community 
center, it could possibly hurt their catering. He said they shouldn’t worry, since it is only for special events like 
Church pancake suppers or Boy Scouts meals. Mr. Veasey also presented quotes for adding the commercial kitchen 
that illustrated that the kitchen could be completed for a little less than $10,000. 
 
Gail Smy, 88 Governor Thomson Terrace, commented that she was having an issue with cats killing her birds and all 
of our animal ordinances only address dogs, so there is nothing she can do about it. She asked Town Council if they 
could change the ordinances to address cats, or all pets as well.   

 

 

1



 

 
Page 2 of 4  February 25, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Consent Agenda 
Councilwoman Sherrill moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion 
and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda.  
 
A. Monthly Tax Report and Order to Advertise Tax Liens ($102,968.25) – Adopted the Order to Advertise Tax 

Liens 
B. Budget Amendment: Fire Department and Police Department - Approval of Budget Amendment. 
C. Set Public Hearing for Zoning Map Amendment: Red Cole Drive – Set Public Hearing for Monday, March 

18, 2019 at 6:45 pm 
D. Initial Review of CZD for 37 Brown Street (Weaver College Old Dormitory) – No initial comments were 

received and the CZD will be reviewed by Planning and Zoning Board 
 

6. Town Manager’s Report 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council including that she will be at the ICMA 
Regional Conference in Greenville on Thursday and Friday this coming week; She thanked Town Planner Eller for 
managing the Tree City application process and she is pleased to announce that the Town has again been designated 
as a Tree City; Music on Main has been scheduled for Saturday, June 22, 2019; and the Town is working on a plan for 
hosting a Summer Music Series in the Nature Park on the second Saturday monthly beginning in June and continuing 
through September. 
 
Mayor Root recognized Town Manager Coffey for all her hard work on the Summer Music Series and thanked 
Councilman McKenna for providing a form for the Town Manager to use when she is away on trips which will enable 
her to report to Council the reason for the trip and the benefits the Town can receive from it.   
  

7. Discussion and Action Items 
A. Action on Proposed Code Amendments: Multi-Family Development 
Town Planner Eller gave a quick recap to Council that before them for approval was the proposed code amendments 
for regulations on multi-family developments within R-3 and R-12 zoning districts. These regulations transition from 
being allowed only upon adoption of a conditional zoning district to being permissible with standards.  Working in 
conjunction with the Planning and Zoning Board, staff created additional standards that would be applicable to this 
use including language on outdoor lighting, sidewalks requirements, garbage receptacles, and lastly, language about 
the maximum number of units within an individual building, which was set at 24. Town Planner Eller noted that it is 
important to know that all general applicable regulations do remain in effect for this particular use in this zoning 
district, and that these regulations come before Town Council having achieved a unanimous recommendation by the 
Planning and Zoning Board.  

Councilman Nagle made a motion to adopt the Ordinance Amending Weaverville Town Code Chapter 36 Concerning 
Regulation of Multifamily Residential Development. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion 
passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 

 
B. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 
Town Planner James Eller mentioned that before Town Council is a flyer advertising two dates in March for Land 
Use Information and Public Input Sessions. These sessions will be held on  March 21 from 12 pm-3pm and March 26 
from 5 pm to 8 pm.  The flyer also shows organized groups like HOAs, WBA and churches, how they can request an 
information/input session in April.  
 
Town Attorney Jackson commented that the meetings in March will be like an open-house style community meeting 
with a PowerPoint presentation and Q&A session from the community. In April, staff will continue to fine tune the 
draft and reserve time for organized groups that are interested in having an information/input session. In May, the first 
draft will be presented to the Planning and Zoning Board for review. In June or July, it will go before Town Council 
for review, and depending on their schedule, staff will request Council to schedule a joint meeting between the 
Planning and Zoning Board and them. Town Council will continue their review process until they are ready to adopt. 

2



 

 
Page 3 of 4  February 25, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

 
C. Approval of Capital Project Ordinance & Waterline Engineering Agreement 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned to Town Council that the Town has received a letter from USDA, Rural 
Development that indicates that the $2.8 million loan has been approved and the funds have been obligated for the 
project.  Since the project will span more than one year, Town Manager Coffey asked Council to approve the 
proposed Capital Project Ordinance, which essentially establishes a separate fund away from the general fund for this 
waterline project.  
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that the Engineering Services Contract is a uniform contract that has the 
USDA requirements overlaid in it. She and the Public Works Director Pennell have gone over it with WithersRavenel, 
Inc. She reminded Council that back at their regular meeting on August 20, 2018, they selected WithersRavenel, Inc. 
as their engineering firm for Phase 1 and now we are entering into the Phase 2 for the actual design engineering for 
the waterline. The total engineering cost associated with this is $405,000, which includes a maximum of $115,000 
included as a high estimate on construction and inspection work. Town Attorney Jackson also noted that we have to 
be consistent with what was approved by the USDA and the engineering contract, otherwise we have to get 
permission from USDA to amend, but the figures listed in the contract are consistent with the costs we have had up to 
this point with a total of $2,970,600.  She thanked Mayor Root for helping review the agreement as well and 
mentioned that there were a couple changes that need to be added to the agreement: 1) change the language in exhibit 
I, Limitations of Liability, from “shall not exceed $50,000” to “shall not exceed total amount of insurance coverage” 
and 2) change the language in exhibit I to “notwithstanding any other provisions in the agreement, the owners waiver 
contained in paragraph 6.11 is limited to the following”. 
 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell mentioned that it is a USDA requirement to allow 24 months for completion of 
the project, with a provision to add another 12 months for finalizing all paperwork.  
 
Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that this is a lump sum contract that gets paid out over different phases, depending 
on where they are on the work. However, should we ask them to do additional work then there are different rates that 
would apply. 

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion that the attached Capital Project Ordinance and the attached 
Agreement between the Town of Weaverville and WithersRavenel, Inc. for Professional Services related to the 
Waterline Extension Project as amended be approved. Councilwoman Sherrill seconded the motion. The motion 
passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 
 
D. Discussion of Holidays & Leave and Related Personnel Policy Amendment 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned to Town Council that before them is a nine-page Holidays and Leave 
Analysis, which compares local jurisdictions and private industries paid holidays, annual vacation leave and sick 
leave accruals.  She noted that all comparable jurisdictions do pay out accumulated and unused annual leave, but the 
maximum amount to be paid out varies.  Also, combining annual leave and sick leave into a PTO system would have 
a negative impact on Town employees in that our employees would not be given creditable service within the 
retirement system.  Town Manager Coffey recommended not making changes to the paid holidays set by Town 
Council, to keep annual vacation leave and sick leave accruals separate until the state catches up to a PTO system, and 
keep annual sick leave accruals at 12 days. She did recommend changing the accrued vacation leave days per year for 
new employees and clarifying that the Town will only pay out 240 hours of accrued vacation leave.  
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that sick leave does not get paid out by the Town if an employee leaves, 
however if the employee retires and has sick leave left, it can be counted as creditable service hours to potentially 
allow the employee to retire early. Finance Director Dozier mentioned that it could also increase their retirement 
benefits as those benefits are calculated based on time of service. 
 
Council discussed concerns with the Town’s shared leave program and to monitor the sharing of sick leave between 
employees and department heads.  Also, lower hourly pay employees shouldn’t be able to share leave with Town 

3



 

 
Page 4 of 4  February 25, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Manager or Department heads with higher hourly pay.  It was suggested to look into making all of it sick leave, in a 
way to encourage the state to update its policy. However, they don’t want to hurt the employees so they will keep 
vacation and sick leave separate until the state catches up.  
 
Public Comment:  
Thomas Veasey, 69 Lakeshore Drive, commented that he agrees with our Town policy to have paid vacation and sick 
leave separate. He believes the new PTO policy takes advantage of the employee and gives back to corporations. He 
would like the Town to keep the policies separate, since the Town isn’t losing money, and it will be an added 
incentive for employees to retire early.   
 
Consensus was made by Town Council to implement the changes that Town Manager Coffey has recommended.  
 
E. Employee Suggestion Incentive Program 
Town Manager Coffey reminded Council that last year during the budget process, Councilman Fitzsimmons made the 
suggestion to look into creating an Employee Suggestion Incentive Program, so funds were approved within the 
current year budget.  Before Town Council tonight for review, discussion and approval is a draft of the program 
description.  In brief, the program is for eligible employees (not Department Heads) that submit suggestions that both 
identify the problem and propose a solution. Town Manager Coffey will review each suggestion and present 
recommendations to the Mayor and Town Council, who will have final approval of any incentives awarded. 

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion to adopt the Employee Suggestion Incentive program as presented. 
Councilman McKenna seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council.  
 
F. Quarterly Reports – Police Department 
Chief Davis presented the Weaverville Police Department Quarterly Report for November - December 2018, and 
January 2019. Chief Davis noted that incidents involving officer activities have increased, but crimes overall have 
decreased, which means it is taking more time from officer to do same amount of activity. Going forward, Chief 
Davis is trying to be more efficient, and eliminate costs and paperwork redundancy. He also mentioned that he would 
like to present future reports in a different format and Town Council was open to that. 
 
G. Quarterly Reports – Fire Department 
Fire Chief Ted Williams presented the Weaverville Fire Departments Quarterly Report for November - December 
2018, and January 2019. They had 23 child passenger safety seat installations, 20 commercial business inspections, 
and have transitioned their reporting system to a more user friendly, data productive system.  
 

8. Closed Session 
Councilwoman Fitzsimmons made the motion to enter closed session as per N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(6) to 
consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of appointment, of conditions of 
employment of a public officer or employee, or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge or grievance. 
Councilwoman Sherrill seconded the motion and by a unanimous vote Council entered into closed session. 

[CLOSED SESSION] 

Councilwoman Sherrill made the motion to exit closed session. Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson seconded and all 
voted unanimously to exit closed session and re-enter open session. 
 

9. Adjournment 
Councilman Nagle made the motion to adjourn; Councilwoman Sherrill seconded and all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 9:11 p.m. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

4



 

 
Page 1 of 1  March 18, 2019 
  Town Council Special-Called Meeting Minutes 
 

                       
                        MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Special Called Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, March 18, 2019 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a Special-Called meeting on Monday, March 
18, 2019, at 6:45 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, 
Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman 
Dottie Sherrill, Councilman Andrew Nagle, Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons and Councilman Jeff 
McKenna.  
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Water 
Treatment Plant Supervisor Trent Duncan and Public Works Director Dale Pennell. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 6:45 p.m. 
 

2. Public Hearing: Rezoning of Parcels on Red Cole Drive 
Mayor Root opened the Public Hearing. 

 
Town Planner James Eller mentioned that before Town Council was a proposed zoning map 
amendment related to five parcels consisting of 4.27 acres located adjacent to Red Cole Drive. The 
rezoning would convert the parcels from their current zoning of C-2 to R-3. This matter was before 
the Planning and Zoning Board on March 5, 2019 and achieved a unanimous recommendation.  This 
public hearing has been duly advertised. 

 
3. Public Comment – No Comments 

 
4. Adjournment 

Councilman Nagle made the motion to close the public hearing and adjourn the special called 
meeting; Councilman Jackson seconded and all voted in favor of closing the public hearing and 
adjourning the meeting at 6:45 pm. 

 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
        Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

5



 

 
Page 1 of 5  March 18, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

                       

                        MINUTES 
Town of Weaverville    Town Council Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, March 18, 2019 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, March 18, 2019, at 7:00 
p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, 
Councilman Jeffrey McKenna, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Town 
Clerk Derek Huninghake, Police Chief Ron Davis, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Public Works 
Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Councilwoman Sherrill made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilman Nagle seconded and all 
voted in favor of the motion. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

Councilwoman Sherrill made the motion to approve the minutes from February 12, 2019 Town Council Special-
Called Meeting and February 25, 2019 Town Council Special-Called Meeting as presented. Councilman Nagle 
seconded the motion and all voted in favor on the approval of the minutes. 
 

4. General Public Comment 
Public comments were received as follows:  
Thomas Veasey, 69 Lakeshore Dr., gave Council a handout and mentioned that after further research, having a 
commercial kitchen in the community center would require a stainless steel worktable, refrigerator and dishwasher. 
Adding these three items to the kitchen proposal brings the total to around $20,000. He is of the opinion that a 
commercial kitchen should be included in the final plans for the community center. 
 
Tom Plaut, 16 Riddle Ridge Dr., agreed with the kitchen proposal from Mr. Veasey and commented that the 
commercial kitchen would be a great investment that could be put to good use. Also, with the new land acquired from 
97 Lakeshore Drive, there is a beautiful walking trail that leads along the creek that comes to a fence that says, don’t 
go any further due to Weaverville Police Shooting Range. Mr. Plaut wonders if we could have a discussion on 
possibly moving the gate back so that the trail could be extended. 
 
Bernie Koester, 37 Lakeshore Dr., reiterated the commercial kitchen idea and believes that we are missing out on an 
opportunity if we don’t include that type of kitchen in the new community center. This would be a great way for us to 
hold dinners for organizations and is only a small amount of money in the whole community center.  
 

6



 

 
Page 2 of 5  March 18, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Consent Agenda 
Councilman Nagle moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson seconded the 
motion and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda.  
 
A. Monthly Tax Report – Information Only 
B. Tax Releases/Refunds- Approved tax release of $26,100 in value from the real property of Jeffrey Lynn Banks at 

26 Bankstown Road bearing PIN 9742-13-0984, so that $99.18 can be released from the 2018 tax levy. 
C. Earth Day and Arbor Day Proclamations – Adopted Proclamations recognizing Earth Day on Monday, April 

22, 2019 and Arbor Day on April 26, 2019. 
D. Comprehensive Land Use Update – Staff will be hosting Land Use Information and Public Input Sessions on 

Thursday, March 21, 2019 from noon to 3 pm and on Thursday, March 26 from 5pm to 8pm. Presentations for 
organized groups upon request in April.  
 

6. Town Manager’s Report 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council including that our Public Works Department 
will be busy working at the Main Street Nature Park on replacing the old stairs from the municipal parking lot with 
new stairs, and building a new rustic-style stage to be used for many functions including the Town’s summer music 
series; she gave a big thank you to our Finance Officer Tonya Dozier on coordinating a Shred Day for the Town 
residents with the State Employees Credit Union on May 11, 2019 from 9am – 12pm; she reported that the Town 
received a final purchase offer on GovDeals for the Weaverville Police Departments 2011 Dodge Charger for $4,725; 
she met with Clark Duncan from the Economic Development Coalition of Asheville/Buncombe and discussed how 
they can help the Town and how the Town can participate more in what they do there; the Economic Development 
Coalition has a project coming up later this year where they are adding layers in GIS with the essential goal to be a 
specific site selection criterion and ask for our participation; she provided an update on the progress that has been 
made on the Strategic Plan Quarterly Report. 
 

7. Discussion and Action Items 
A. Proposed Legislation regarding Local ABC Boards 
Rob Chason, ABC Chairman, discussed with Town Council some very important issues that have been gaining a lot 
of attention recently on North Carolina’s controlled system of alcoholic beverage sales. There has been discussion on 
privatizing the ABC system and currently, there are bills pending in both the NC House of Representatives and NC 
Senate that would mandate the merger of local ABC Boards into a consolidated county ABC Board.  Mr. Chason 
noted that privatizing would mean we would no longer be a controlled state and profits would go to the business 
owners, instead of the Town. However, the main focus right now is the bill that’s pending in the US Senate and NC 
House of Representatives that mandates a merger to a consolidated county ABC Board, to which the Weaverville 
ABC Board is against. He urges Town Council to reach out to their legislators to voice their concerns and to join the 
Weaverville ABC Board in their opposition to legislation on privatizing the sale of beverages in North Carolina 
and/or mandate the merger of the local ABC Boards by adopting the proposed resolution.   
 
Public Comment: 
Ronnie Hilliard, 85 Alexander Rd., noted that he is here speaking as a Weaverville citizen, not a member of the ABC 
Board. He mentioned that it all comes down to whether you want to keep the control of alcoholic beverage sales like it 
is now, or let the state have control and decide where the money goes. 
 
Councilman Nagle recommended that the ABC Board and staff should create a letter for Town Council to sign and 
send to the state. Also, it could be added to the Town website for citizens to do the same. Town Attorney  Jackson 
agreed to draft a sample letter and distribute to Town Council and the ABC Board. 
  
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion to adopt the proposed Resolution in Support of the Current ABC 
Control System for the Sale of Liquor. Councilman McKenna seconded the motion. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 

7



 

 
Page 3 of 5  March 18, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

 
B. Dry Ridge Museum Presentation 
Jan Lawrence, President of the Dry Ridge Museum, presented to Town Council a preparation plan for the move to the 
new community center. In the past seven weeks, they have cleaned, sorted and accessed the collection, established 
arrangements for items needing archival protection, and created layout plans and a timeline. At their current location, 
they estimate that they have been open a total of 60 days and had 1005 visitors. With the new location, they estimate 
to be open a total of 300 days and to increase number of visitors by targeting groups like retirement homes, scouts, 
school groups, the Weaverville Tailgate group, and families at Lake Louise. Also, they have come up with interactive 
ideas like summer programs, costumes and games, and night programs like storytelling and readers’ theatre to attract 
more visitors. Mrs. Lawrence estimates that their 3000 artifacts will be setup in mini-exhibits and permanent exhibits, 
and can’t wait to have a grand opening at the finish of the project. 
 
Council held discussion on the funding of the Dry Ridge Museum insurance, the amount of museum personnel needed 
to operate at the new location hours, and if the museum would need to have staff there at all times, or if there would 
be closed exhibits open to the public without staff present.    
 
C. Action Regarding Map Amendment on Red Cole Drive 
Town Planner Eller gave a quick recap of the Public Hearing held earlier on the proposed zoning map amendment 
related to five parcels located adjacent to Red Cole Drive. These five parcels consist of 4.27 acres and the proposed 
amendment would convert these parcels from their current zoning of C-2 to R-3. The public hearing was advertised 
and held and the Planning and Zoning Board submitted a unanimous recommendation to Town Council supporting R-
3 zoning for these properties.  
 
Mayor Root asked what uses can be made on the lot that as .12 acres. Town Planner Eller mentioned that this is a non-
conforming lot in any zoning district. It is his belief and understanding that no homes could be built on this property 
as it is presently constituted. 

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion to approve the Ordinance Amending the Town’s Zoning Map – 
Rezoning Certain Properties on Red Cole Drive from C-2 to R-3. Councilman Nagle seconded the motion. The motion 
passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 
 
D. Sale of Former Bus Garage 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that the matter before Town Council on the desire to declare and sale the 
property located at 13 Central Avenue has been on the agenda several times. She understands that Council still wishes 
to sell this property, so she has been working with the Mayor and Town Manager to come up with a required sales 
agreement. Some of the requirements in the sales agreement are that the property is to be sold in an as-is condition, a 
cash sale without loan contingency, the buyer is to close within 30 days of Town Council’s acceptance of the offer or 
forfeit the bid deposit. The only way for a bid deposit to be returned to a buyer is if the Town breaches the contract or 
cannot convey market title or the condition of the building changes between the time the contract is signed and 
closing. Town Attorney Jackson noted that this property is in the C-1 zoning district and if there are other issues that 
Council would like to restrict, they need to be mentioned tonight so they can be included in the agreement.  She 
mentioned that Councilman Jackson had mentioned today to possibly add a restriction on retail stores selling smoke 
supplies. C-1 regulations were reviewed as were the restrictions that were on the sale of the old fire station that was 
sold a few years ago. Mayor Root noted that Council cannot waive the C-1 restrictions, but rather can add other 
restrictions that are not covered under C-1. Based on the conversation Town Attorney Jackson proposed that in the 
sales agreement under Section 8, Zoning Regulations, it should be changed to Zoning Regulations and Restrictions 
and include the following language, “the property is also being sold subject to the following deed restrictions: retail 
stores that sale smoking supplies and accessories such as pipes, rolling papers, grinders and other paraphernalia used 
for consumption of tobacco, cannabis or other light substances are prohibited on the property. Also, prohibited are 
retail stores that sale electronic cigarettes, vaping devices, and related equipment accessories and supplies”. 
 
Public Comment: 

8



 

 
Page 4 of 5  March 18, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Bernard Koester, 37 Lakeshore Drive, asked what percentage is required for an individual to upset a bid. 
 
Laura Ayers, 83 Ayers Road, asked if Council has to accept the highest bidder and if there is a current bid.  
 
Ronnie Hilliard, 85 Alexander Road, asked if it was a close bid process until highest bid is confirmed. 
 
Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that to qualify as an upset bid it cannot be less than 10% of first $1,000, and 5% of 
the remaining bid. She also stated that Council has to accept the highest bid and there isn’t a current bid. 
 
In order to expedite the process, she recommended Town Council propose to accept the offer representing the highest 
bid received by a set deadline of April 8th and direct the Town Clerk to advertise that offer and seek upset bids until a 
10-day upset bid expires without a new qualified high bid. 

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion to approve the sales contract as amended to add the deed 
restrictions and to proceed with sealed bids to be opened on April 8, 2019, to propose to accept the highest offer 
received on April 8th, and begin a 10-day upset bid after that bid opening. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the 
motion. The motion passed by a majority vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0.  

 

E. Discussion of Delegated Policies with Personnel Policy 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that Council has given a lot of feedback on the Town’s personnel policy 
over the past year and there are a few areas that delegate the policy development to the Town Manager. Before staff 
brings back the combined final draft of the personnel policy for Council approval, she wants Council to reconsider 
whether the following specific policies should be their policies or delegated to the Town Manager. These policies are 
1) Use of Town Vehicles and Equipment, 2) Internet and Social Media Use, and 3) Substance Abuse.  
 
Councilman McKenna mentioned that regardless of which entity handles the policy, he suggests advising Council on 
what direction staff is proposing to take it.   

Consensus was reached by Town Council to have the Town Manager present the proposed policies for Council’s 
review and further discussion.  
 
F. Annexation Petition/Initial Zoning: Riverside Stump Dump Property Resolution 
Town Clerk Derek Huninghake mentioned to Town Council that the Town has received a voluntary annexation 
petition for the 19.4 acres of land currently being used as Riverside Stump Dump, and also a zoning map amendment 
application requesting an initial zoning of R-12 if the property is to be annexed into the Town’s municipal limits. If 
annexed on the property, the Riverside Stump Dump, would be allowed to continue as a nonconforming use; however, 
it appears that the property owner or developer will seek development approvals from the Town in order to develop 
the property as a multifamily residential development as allowed under R-12 zoning. In order to consider this 
annexation request the next step is for Town Council to adopt a resolution which directs the Town Clerk to investigate 
the sufficiency of the annexation petition and directs the Planning and Zoning Board to review and provide a 
recommendation on the requested zoning of R-12. 

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion to adopt the proposed resolution concerning the annexation petition 
and initial zoning submitted for the property located at 135 Monticello Road. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the 
motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 
 
G. Quarterly Reports – Public Works & Water Services 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell presented the Public Works and Water Services Quarterly Report for December 
2019 through February 2019. Some highlights that he mentioned were that the average use relative to design capacity 
is at 37% and the monthly usage and future usage is at 62%, which means the Town is well within their means for 
water production and sales.  

9



 

 
Page 5 of 5  March 18, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

8. Adjournment 
Councilman Nagle made the motion to adjourn; Councilwoman Sherrill seconded and all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 8:51 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

10



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  April 15, 2019 

Subject:   Proclamation Honoring the Weaverville Lions Club 70th Anniversary  

Presenter:   Mayor Root 

Attachments:   Proclamation  

 

Description: 

Attached is a Proclamation honoring the Weaverville Lions Club for its 70th anniversary of service. 
Members of the Lions Club will be in attendance to accept this honor. 
 

 

 

Council Action Requested: 

Adoption of the Proclamation is requested. 

 

 

11



A Proclamation Recognizing 
The Weaverville Lions Club 70th Anniversary 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Weaverville Lions Club was chartered on April 6, 1949; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Weaverville Lions Club has supported and worked in numerous local and 
state service areas; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Weaverville Lions Club has helped to provide vision services for the poor 
and needy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Weaverville Lions Club has supported the neighboring Marjorie McCune 
Community in Black Mountain; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Weaverville Lions Club has raised funds to provide scholarships to 
graduating seniors at North Buncombe High School; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Weaverville Lions Club has greatly assisted the Weaverville Police 
Department Cops for Kids program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Weaverville Lions Club has supported various charitable causes and local 
activities; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE I, Allan P. Root, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor 
of the Town of Weaverville, along with the Weaverville Town Council, do hereby proclaim 
that the Weaverville Lions Club 70th Anniversary will be celebrated throughout the 
year of 2019 in honor their ongoing, excellent service to the community. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Town 
of Weaverville to be affixed this the 15th day of April in year of 2019. 

 
 

   
Allan P. Root, Mayor  Doug Jackson, Vice Mayor 
   

Dottie Sherrill, Councilwoman  Patrick Fitzsimmons, Councilman 
   

Andrew Nagle, Councilman  Jeff McKenna, Councilman 

   
   
   
  ATTEST:  Derek Huninghake, Town Clerk 

 

12



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of                
April 8, 2019. This report is provided for information only.  

No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

13



AS OF 4/8/2019
Real Property: $750,820,030
Real Property Discoveries: 1,279,000             

Total Real Property:  $752,099,030
Personal: 54,787,228           
Personal Discoveries: 30,290,632           

Total Personal: 85,077,860           
Public Utilities: 4,952,725             
Exemption: (10,689,570)         
Releases: (1,056,906)           
Total Tax Value $830,383,139

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: $2,857,976
Personal Property: 323,296                
Public Utilities: 18,820                  
Less Under $5 Adjustment (57)                         
Total Public Utilities: 18,763                  
Exemption: (40,620)                 
Releases: (4,016)                   
Total Levy (Total Billed) 3,155,399             

Total Current Year Collections $3,099,112
% Collected 98.22%

Total Left to be Collected: $56,287

Prior Years Paid $151

Town of Weaverville
MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2018-19

14



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019  

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Land Use Plan Project – Staff Update  

PRESENTER:  Planning Director/Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Staff’s scheduled land use information/input sessions have been completed. We 
thought you would be pleased to know that we had a total of over 60 people in 
attendance (over the 2 sessions), not including the several members of Town 
Council, Planning and Zoning Board, Board of Adjustment and staff. These sessions 
were active discussions and provided a good opportunity to not only inform our 
citizens about land use and other related matters but to also receive valuable input 
from our community members. 

The Reems Creek Golf Community has scheduled a land use information and input 
session for April 25, so we look forward to engaging with that community in those 
discussions. We also believe that the Lake Louise Preservation Association might be 
scheduling a session with us as well.   

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

No action requested. 

15



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  April 15, 2019 

Subject:   Road Closure Ordinances:  

Presenter:   Selena D. Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:   Road Closure Ordinances 

• Music on Main, June 22, 2019 
• Downtown July 4 Celebration, July 4, 2019   

 

 

Description: 

Attached please find the Ordinances for the road closures for each respective event. 
 

 

 

 

Council Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of all three ordinances. 

 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to approve the road closure ordinances for Music on Main and the Downtown July 
4th Celebration. 

 

16



Weaverville	North	Carolina	

AN	ORDINANCE	DECLARING	A	ROAD	CLOSURE	FOR	THE	MUSIC	ON	MAIN	EVENT	SPONSORED	
BY	THE	WEAVERVILLE	BUSINESS	ASSOCIATION	

WHEREAS,	the	Town	Council	of	Weaverville	has	been	approached	by	the	Weaverville	
Business	Association	requesting	to	hold	a	Music	on	Main	event	on	South	Main	Street,	Weaverville;	
and		

WHEREAS,	the	Town	of	Weaverville	has	acknowledged	and	agreed	to	permit	said	event	on	
the	date	and	times	specified	below	as	a	community	and	family	oriented	event;	and		

WHEREAS,	the	Weaverville	Business	Association	has	completed	and	provided	payment	to	
the	Town	for	the	required	special	event	permit	and	agreed	to	abide	by	any	and	all	regulations	set	
forth	by	Town	officials	and	the	State	of		North	Carolina	in	sponsoring	this	event;	and		

WHEREAS,	the	Town	Council	of	Weaverville	acknowledges	that	the	Town	departments	
require	approximately	one	(1)	hour	to	install	signage,	and	also	requires	approximately	one	(1)	hour	
for	removing	signage,	litter,	etc.	after	the	event;	and	

NOW		THEREFORE	BE	IT	ORDAINED	by	the	Town	Council	of	Weaverville,	pursuant	to	the	
authority	granted	by	N.C.G.	S.	20‐169,	that	we	do	hereby	declare	a	temporary	road	closure	on	the	
day	and	times	set	forth	below	and	the	following	described	portion	of	a	State	Highway	System	route:		

Music	on	Main,	Sponsored	by	the	Weaverville	Business	Association		

Date:		 Saturday,	June	22,	2019		

Time:  2:00pm until 10:30pm	

Road	Closures:	

 Road	closure	at	intersection	of	Main	Street	and	US‐19‐BR	Merrimon	Avenue
 Road	closure	at	30	South	Main	Street

This	ordinance	will	become	effective	when	signs	are	erected	giving	notice	of	the	road	closures	and	

detour	routes,	the	implementation	of	adequate	traffic	control.		

Adopted	this	15th	day	of	April	2019.	

__________________________________________		
Al	Root,	Mayor		
Town	of	Weaverville,	N.C.	

Attest:		

_________________________________________	
Derek	Huninghake,	Town	Clerk	
Town	of	Weaverville,	N.C.	

17



 
 

Town of Weaverville 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A ROAD CLOSURE FOR THE  
Weaverville July 4th Celebration 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of hosting a 
July 4th celebration, that benefits the Weaverville and the North Buncombe community; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges the July 4 downtown 
celebration will  require approximately two (2) hours to install signage, and also will 
require approximately one (1) hour for removing signage, litter, etc. 
 
WHEREAS, The Town Council of Weaverville recognizes that the detour route will be 
appropriately marked with signage and personnel at various locations to ensure the 
motoring public travels safely and without unnecessary delay. 
 
NO THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Weaverville pursuant to the 
authority granted by G. S. 20-169, that we do hereby declare a temporary road closure on 
the day and times set forth below and the following described portion of a State Highway 
System route: 
 
 Weaverville Downtown July 4th Celebration 
  
 Date:    July 4, 2019 
 
 Time:   3:00pm until 11:30pm    
 

Road Closure: The portion of Main Street between Church Street and Brown 
Street will be closed and all traffic safely detoured around this 
area. 

  
 

This ordinance to become effective when signs are erected giving notice of the road 
closures and detour routes, the implementation of adequate traffic control.  
 
 
    Adopted this 15th day of April, 2019 
 
    __________________________________________ 
    Al Root, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________________ 
Derek Huninghake, Town Clerk 

18



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  April 15, 2019  

Subject:   Approval of FY 2018-2019 Audit Contract   

Presenter:   Town Finance Director 

Attachments: Audit Contract with Gould Killian CPA Group 
 

Description: 

Attached you will find the engagement letter and contract between the Town of 
Weaverville and Gould Killian CPA Group for the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Audit.   A Request 
for Proposal for audit services was conducted in the spring of 2018, and Gould Killian was 
selected at that point.  Accordingly, this is the second year of the three-year audit contract 
for this auditing firm.  You will find that the total fee of $22,150 is only a $150 increase 
from the prior year. This $22,150 includes $17,950 for the audit and $4,200 for the 
completion of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  This contract must be executed 
by the Town in order for the auditor to provide same to the Local Government Commission 
(LGC).  

 

 

Council Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of this contract and direction to execute the 
document and forward same to Gould Killian CPA Group.  The following is suggested as a 
motion to approve this contract: 

I move that the attached audit contract with Gould Killian CPA Group be approved and 
that the Mayor and Town staff be authorized to execute the same. 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

DATE OF MEETING:  April 15, 2019 

SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing Credit Card Payments 

PRESENTER:  Finance Director 

ATTACHMENTS:  Proposed Resolution 
Notice of Fees 

DESCRIPTION: 

The Town offers several ways in which to pay utility bills, taxes, or other amounts owed 
to the Town. Many of our citizens and customers like the convenience of paying by 
credit card. The Town contracts with Official Payments to process electronic payments 
both online and over-the-counter at Town Hall.  All credit card payments require the 
customer to pay an electronic convenience fee. Those fees are included in the Town’s 
adopted Fee Schedule and customers are notified of those fees prior to approving 
electronic payments.  The attached Notice of Fees shows the current electronic 
payment options and fees based upon the type and location of payment. The Town and 
Official Payments accept Visa, Mastercard, Discover and American Express for all 
payments, except that Visa cards are not currently allowed as a method of payment for 
utility bills that are paid at Town Hall. Many of the Town’s citizens and customers 
would like this option added, even if a convenience fee must be paid. 

Visa requires that a resolution like the one attached be on file with Official Payments in 
order to allow payment of utility bills to be made at Town Hall with a Visa credit card.  

The Town Manager and Finance Director recommend that the proposed resolution be 
adopted in order to add Visa as an acceptable method of paying for utility payments at 
Town Hall.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to approve the attached resolution so that a fuller array of 
payment options can be accepted for online and over-the-counter payments. The 
following motion is suggested for this purpose: 

I move that we adopt the Resolution Authorizing the Use of Credit Cards for Payment 
of any Type of Bill or Fee. 

33



Z:\Administration\Ordinances & Resolutions\Resolution Authorizing Use of Credit Cards for Any Type of Bill or Fee - April 2019.docx 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE USE OF CREDIT CARDS 
FOR PAYMENT OF ANY TYPE OF BILL OR FEE  

 
WHEREAS, The Town offers several ways in which to pay utility bills, taxes, or other 

bills and fees owed to the Town; and 

WHEREAS, for the convenience of its citizens and customers the Town currently 
provides electronic payment options, including the use of credit cards, and desires to 
continue offering these services;  

WHEREAS, the Town has entered into an agreement with a vendor which provides 
the means of offering electronic payment options to the Town’s customers upon the 
customer’s payment of a transaction or convenience fee for each electronic payment; and 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to state its intent to provide electronic payment 
options to its customers who pay online and over the counter at Town Hall for a 
transaction or convenience fee no greater than the cost incurred by the Town per 
transaction; 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NORTH 
CAROLINA, ACTING THROUGH ITS COUNCIL MEMBERS, that the Town does hereby 
authorize the use of credit cards or other electronic payments as a method of payment for 
any type of bill or fee, whether being paid online or over the counter at Town Hall, upon the 
customer’s payment of the transaction or convenience fee charged by the vendor who 
processes such payment. 
 

ADOPTED this 15th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
     _____________________________________________ 
     ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

34



DE
BI

T/
CR

ED
IT

 C
AR

D 
U

SE
RS

 

N
ot

ic
e 

of
 N

ew
 F

ee
s 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

8,
 a

ll 
de

bi
t/

cr
ed

it 
ca

rd
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
at

 
To

w
n 

Ha
ll 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

fe
es

 a
nd

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
: 

Ta
xe

s 
2.

5 
%

 o
f p

ay
m

en
t a

m
ou

nt
 

$3
.9

5 
m

in
im

um
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

/Z
on

in
g/

M
is

c.
 

2.
5 

%
 o

f p
ay

m
en

t a
m

ou
nt

 
$1

.9
5 

m
in

im
um

 
 U

til
ity

 B
ill

s 
N

o 
Vi

sa
 c

ar
ds

 a
llo

w
ed

 a
t T

ow
n 

Ha
ll 

$2
.9

5 
pe

r t
ra

ns
ac

tio
n 

Vi
sa

 c
ar

ds
 a

llo
w

ed
 if

 p
ai

d 
on

lin
e 

Pa
ym

en
ts

 (s
am

e 
fe

es
 a

pp
ly

) c
an

 a
ls

o 
be

 m
ad

e 
at

: w
w

w
.o

ffi
ci

al
pa

ym
en

ts
.c

om
 

 Th
e 

To
w

n 
is 

w
or

ki
ng

 to
 k

ee
p 

co
st

s d
ow

n 
w

hi
le

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 p
ro

gr
am

s a
nd

 se
rv

ic
es

. W
hi

le
 c

re
di

t 
an

d 
de

bi
t c

ar
d 

pa
ym

en
ts

 a
re

 a
 c

on
ve

ni
en

t w
ay

 to
 p

ay
 y

ou
r b

ill
s/

ta
xe

s,
 th

e 
co

st
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
is 

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

ha
s g

ro
w

n 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
. 

Th
es

e 
fe

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 c

ha
rg

ed
 b

y 
or

 p
ai

d 
to

 th
e 

To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e.

 T
he

 fe
es

 g
o 

di
re

ct
ly

 to
 th

e 
th

ird
-p

ar
ty

 
pr

oc
es

so
r t

o 
co

ve
r t

he
 fe

es
 c

ha
rg

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cr

ed
it 

an
d 

de
bi

t c
ar

d 
co

m
pa

ni
es

.  

35

http://www.officialpayments.com/


TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  April 15, 2019 

Subject:   Town Manager’s Report 

Presenter:   Selena D. Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:   Monthly Report  

 

Description: 

Attached is the Town Manager’s monthly report. The Town Manager will review the report during 
the meeting. 
 

 

 

Council Action Requested: 

No action requested 

 

 

36



 
Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

 
Town Manager’s Report 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 

 

    

April 2019 

A. Town Offices Closed for Good Friday:  As a reminder, Town offices will be closed in 
recognition of Good Friday on April 19. 
 

B. Vacation:  I will be taking vacation from April 16-April 19. Although I will not be in 
the office, I will be available by phone or text during this time. 
 

C. Reminder of Earth Day & Arbor Day: Just a reminder that the Town will be 
recognizing Earth Day on April 22 and will be holding a brief program recognizing 
Arbor Day on April 26 at 11am. The Arbor Day program will be held outside of Town 
Hall. 
 

D. Shred Day:  The Town will be coordinating with the State Employees Credit Union to 
host a Shred Day for the Town’s residents on May 11 from 9am-12pm. The shred 
truck will be set up in the Town Hall parking lot. 
 

E. Budget Workshop:  As a reminder, we will be having our first budget workshop on 
Tuesday, May 14 at 6:00pm in Council Chambers at Town Hall. 
 

F. GovDeals/Sale of Property: In accordance with the Town’s Code of Ordinances, I 
am reporting that we just sold a 1997 Vermeer Brush Chipper for $7,500 on 
GovDeals. 
 
 
 
 

37



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: April 15, 2019 

Subject: Presentation of FY 2019-2020 Proposed Budget 

Presenter:  Selena D. Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:  Budget Message & Executive Summary 

Description: 

Attached is the Town Manager’s Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Proposed Budget. The Town Manager will 
present the proposed budget at the meeting. 

Council Action Requested: 

No action requested at this time. 

38



Office of the Town Manager 
30 South Main Street 
P.O. Box 338 
Weaverville, N.C.  28787 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 
Town Manager  

Phone: (828) 645-7116 
Email: scoffey@weavervillenc.org 

www.weavervillenc.org 

 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Message 

April 15, 2019 

Honorable Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, Councilman 
Patrick Fitsimmons, Councilman Andrew Nagle, and Councilman Jeff McKenna: 

It is my honor and privilege to present for your review and deliberations, the proposed fiscal year 
2019-2020 budget. Pursuant to Section 159-11 of the North Carolina General Statutes, the Town of 
Weaverville’s proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020 is 
hereby submitted for your consideration. This budget is presented in accordance with the North 
Carolina Local Government Budget & Fiscal Control Act and is balanced as required by North Carolina 
General Statutes. 

The proposed budget, which totals $9,962,776 and represents an increase of 1.4% over the 
current budget, is representative of your leadership and our dedicated employees’ efforts in 
addressing the service demands of our community during a time of remarkable growth. As they 
should, our citizens and businesses want 
responsive police and fire protection, well-
maintained streets and roads, timely 
public works services, enjoyable 
recreation opportunities, clean water and 
other amenities that provide them the 
quality of life that keep them in 
Weaverville, or attracted them to our 
beautiful part of the world in the first 
place. While we maintain high standards 
for our current residents, we must 
continue to invest in future generations 
through upgrades and improvements in all 
Town service areas. Unfortunately, municipalities in North Carolina are somewhat limited in options 
to fund all of these services. In order to protect our current residents’ quality of life and Town 
character while balancing growth, we must continually evaluate our deployment of services in 
sensible and sustainable ways. As our Town’s elected officials, you have identified strategic priorities 
for the coming years to work towards this balance while meeting the service needs of the community. 

General Fund Overview 

The proposed General Fund budget for fiscal year 2019-2020 totals $7,561,526 which represents a 
0.1% or an approximate $8,704 increase in expenditures over the fiscal year 2018-2019 budget.  

The Town of 
Weaverville 

NORTH CAROLINA 

Figure 1: Excerpt from Weaverville Fact Sheet 2018 

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 

1 39



The sources of revenue and categories of expenses within the General Fund are reflected in the 
illustrations below: 

 
 

Property Taxes 
42.5% 

Fire District Taxes 
21.4% 

Sales Tax 
18.5% 

Intergovernmental 
13.1% 

Permits & Fees, 
Fund Balance, Other 

4.5% 

Where does the Town’s revenue come from? 

Public Safety 
(Police and Fire) 

56.2% 

Public Works 
(Streets, Sanitation, Recreation) 

25.9% 

Where will the money go? 

Administration 
(Gov. Body, Admin,  

Tax, Finance) 
11.5% 

Debt Service 
5.0% 

Planning 
1.4% 

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 

2 40



The Town’s General Fund revenues by source and expenditures by department for fiscal year 2018-
2019 and proposed for fiscal year 2019-2020 are summarized in the table below: 

Revenues by Source FY 2018-2019 
Amended Budget 

FY 2019-2020 
Proposed Budget 

% 
Variance 

Ad Valorem Taxes $3,008,164 $3,215,564 6.9% 
Buncombe County Fire District Taxes $1,387,000 $1,616,629 16.6% 
Local Government Sales Taxes $1,250,000 $1,396,000 11.7% 
Appropriated Fund Balance $824,774 $184,933 -77.6% 
Unrestricted Intergovernmental Revenue $833,688 $883,000 5.9% 
Restricted Intergovernmental Revenue $106,000 $106,000 0.0% 
Investment Earnings $84,300 $118,900 41.0% 
Permits & Fees $25,300 $20,500 -19.0% 
Other Revenue $12,500 $20,000 60.0% 
Total Revenues: $7,531,726 $7,561,526 0.4% 
Expenditures by Department FY 2018-2019 

Amended Budget 
FY 2019-2020 

Proposed Budget 
% 

Variance 
Town Council $246,762 $253,151 2.6% 
Administration $661,284 $599,639 -9.3% 
Planning $106,749 $108,459 1.6% 
Police Department $1,706,165 $1,868,886 9.5% 
Fire Department $2,144,952 $2,381,256 11.0% 
Public Works $2,288,517 $1,955,326 -14.6% 
Contingency $20,000 $20,000 0.0% 
Debt Service $378,393 $374,809 -0.9% 
Total Expenditures: $7,552,822 $7,561,526 0.1% 

General Fund Revenue Highlights 

• Ad Valorem Taxes:  The proposed budget is based on the Town’s current tax rate of $0.38
per $100 valuation at a collection rate of 99.5% and tax values estimated by Buncombe
County of $850,453,330 for real and personal property, a 5.7% increase over the current
year’s valuation.

• Buncombe County Fire District Taxes:  As you are aware, Buncombe County levies all fire
district taxes within the county and the Weaverville Fire Department receives funding for fire
protection for the North Buncombe Fire District. This funding is essential as our department
continues providing fire protection to the area, which has seen an increase of 10% in calls
over the last year alone. The proposed budget includes approximately $229,600 in additional
tax revenue.

• Local Government Sales Taxes:  We are forecasting a 4% increase in sales tax revenue over
the current, fiscal year 2018-2019 anticipated revenues. This projection is based primarily on

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 

3 41



prior years’ collections, but also relying heavily on the North Carolina League of 
Municipalities’ statewide sales tax distribution projections, which forecasts sales tax revenue 
averaging 4.5% statewide in the upcoming fiscal year. 

• Fund Balance:  The Town’s last audit confirmed that we had just over $6.3 million in available
fund balance as of June 30, 2018.  Town Council has established a minimum requirement that
fund balance be 40% of general fund revenues, and we are currently at 95%. The proposed
budget utilizes approximately $184,933 of our accumulated fund balance to offset capital
equipment and capital improvements.

• Fees: The proposed budget includes fee adjustments in several areas, although these are not
expected to significantly impact the Town’s revenue base in the upcoming fiscal year.

General Fund Expenditure Highlights 

Personnel Expenses 

• General:  During its fiscal year 2014-2015 budget deliberations, Town Council adopted a
Resolution Adopting a Policy on Paying a Living Wage, along with all other government
jurisdictions in Buncombe County. The Town has continued to maintain the living wage rate
every fiscal year since that time. The latest living rate wages for 2019 are as follows:

o $13.65 per hour for employees that are not offered employer-provided health insurance;
and

o $12.15 per hour for employees that are offered employer-provided health insurance

In keeping with this policy, we have included contingent funds for a review of Town 
employees’ hourly wages with the potential of enacting some minor increases, specifically in 
the lower grades of the Town’s pay scale. Any proposed wage adjustments will be brought to 
the Mayor and Town Council for final approval. 

In terms of across-the-board compensation expenses, I am proposing an aggregate of 5% 
within each departmental budget for cost of living adjustments (COLA) and merit pay for 
those employees who qualify based on their performance reviews.  

• Fire Department:  In recent years, Town Council has made great strides in bringing our Fire
Department to appropriate staffing levels by increasing the number of full-time firefighters to
meet the North Buncombe Fire District’s growing call volume. The proposed budget also
provides for bringing our part-time firefighters’ pay up to $13.50 per hour, which is the rate
being offered by our neighboring fire departments. This results in a $31,000 increase to the
Fire Department’s personnel budget.

• Police Department:  The proposed budget includes one (1) new police officer position. Last
year, the Town added three (3) additional firefighter positions to address increased call
volumes from the prior year. I am recommending the additional police officer position for the
same reason. The number of dispatched events has increased by almost 220% since fiscal

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 

4 42



year 2005-2006 when the last position was added to the Police Department Patrol Division 
(Figure 2). 

Figure 2: Weaverville Police Department Dispatched Events & Hours 

By adding this additional position, our Police Department will be able to provide a 4-team, 3-
officer approach (see figure below), which is used by virtually all law enforcement agencies in 
our region. This shift in approach will improve police presence in our communities, provide 
improved flexibility among shift supervisors, and reduce overtime. 

2005 2010 2015 2018
EVENTS 1271 2204 3384 4057
HOURS 821 1325 2049 2867

1271

2204

3384
4057

821
1325

2049

2867

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500
4000
4500

Former Police Department Structure Proposed Police Department Structure 

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 

5 43



Capital Expenses 

• Police Department:  In conformity with the Town’s vehicle replacement guidelines, funds
are budgeted for the replacement of three (3) police vehicles, which will be purchased under
state contract pricing. The vehicles to be purchased this year include two (2) marked hybrid
sport utility vehicles and one (1) truck. The hybrid vehicles are being proposed in recognition
of Council members’ suggestions that we attempt to utilize more environmentally-friendly
vehicles in the future. I am proposing these vehicles at a net cost of $95,000 (total of $105,000
with offsetting revenue of $10,000 for the sale of four (4) older vehicles currently in the Police
Department’s fleet).

• Fire Department:  The proposed budget includes the purchase of a sport utility vehicle to
replace the Fire Marshal’s 2009 Dodge Durango. This vehicle serves as a fire response vehicle
and meets the vehicle replacement guidelines due to its age, mileage, and increasing repair
costs. We can anticipate some offsetting revenue from the sale of the former vehicle.

• Public Works Department:  The proposed budget includes the replacement of two (2)
trucks for the Public Works Department for the Streets and Recreation Divisions. These
vehicles meet the vehicle replacement guidelines due to their age, mileage, and increasing
repair costs.

Capital Improvements Program (CIP) 

• Streets Improvements Plan:  The proposed budget includes a total of $375,000 for street
improvements to address the Town’s ongoing commitment to street maintenance and
improvements. This includes $275,000 in Town funding and approximately $100,000 in
restricted Powell Bill funds.

• Sidewalks Study:  Included within the proposed budget is $25,000 for the development of a
study analyzing the Town’s existing sidewalks and potential for future sidewalks. This type of
study was performed some ten years ago and, based on input from the community during this
year’s ongoing comprehensive land use planning project, it is appropriate to review Town
sidewalks again.

• Community Center:  Town staff is currently working with the Legerton Architectural firm to
design development for the new Lake Louise Community Center. Staff anticipates that the
final plans and project budget will come before Town Council for final approval in May. I will
be proposing that a project fund be established at that time, with a subsequent budget
amendment transferring the project funds from the General Fund to a multi-year Capital
Project Fund during the current fiscal year.

• Greenways Project:  The Town has continued to budget $60,000 for the greenways project
for the last two fiscal years, but none of this money has been spent to date. The project is
moving forward, albeit slowly. I am again proposing that these funds remain in the General
Fund budget until the time that they are utilized for the greenways planning efforts.

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 

6 44



• Lake Louise Restroom Facility Improvements:  I am proposing funding totaling $80,000
for substantial improvements to the Lake Louise Park restroom facilities. The current facility
is aged and consistently in need of repairs.

New Initiatives 

• Police Department:  Our Police Department currently does not have access to computer-
aided dispatch (CAD), while all other law enforcement agencies in Buncombe County have
CAD (Sheriff’s Department, Asheville Police, and Woodfin Police) or they have their own
dispatch centers (Black Mountain and Biltmore Forest). For this reason, our officers currently
only receive call information from a radio message from Buncombe County and cannot access
information entered into Buncombe County’s CAD system at the time of a call. If one of our
officers for some reason does not hear a radio transmission or are busy with another call, they
must make a return call to dispatch and seek the information again. This greatly impacts our
officers’ efficiency and has the potential to negatively impact our citizens because we do not
get all of the typical information that a 911 caller provides (i.e. what kind of assistance they
need, details of the situation, etc). Further, with Weaverville Police Department being a “non-
terminal agency” (without CAD), we do not receive crime analysis data. This prevents our
Department from being able to analyze average response times, types of calls, and geographic
locations of calls. For the reasons detailed here, I am recommending funding in the amount of
$43,000 for CAD for the Police Department. This amount is less than the Town would expend
in providing its own dispatch center and I feel that it is incumbent on us to fund this new
initiative for the betterment of our Police Department and benefit to the Town’s citizens.

• Capital Reserve for Fire Truck:  The Town paid off the final $75,000 in debt service for one
of its fire trucks in fiscal year 2018-2019. However, within the proposed budget, I am
recommending that this amount of funds be budgeted and transferred to a capital reserve
fund for the future purchase of a replacement fire truck or necessary fire apparatus.

Water Fund Overview 

The proposed Water Fund budget for fiscal year 2019-2020 totals $2,401,250, which represents a 
6.3% increase over the fiscal year 2018-2019 budget. The table below outlines the major sources of 
revenue and operational and capital expenditures proposed within the fiscal year 2019-2020 budget. 

Revenues by Source FY 2018-2019 
Amended Budget 

FY 2019-2020 
Proposed Budget 

% Variance 

Water Revenue $1,845,000 $1,968,750 6.7% 
Miscellaneous Revenue $17,000 $15,000 -11.8% 
Water Taps $35,000 $42,000 20.0% 
System Development Fees $130,000 $270,000 107.7% 
Fees for MSD Collection $50,000 $55,000 10.0% 
Interest Earned $38,000 $50,500 32.9% 
Appropriated Fund Balance $144,128 $0 -100% 
Total Revenues: $2,259,128 $2,401,250 6.3% 

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 

7 45



Expenditures by Function FY 2018-2019 
Amended Budget 

FY 2019-2020 
Proposed Budget 

% Variance 

Personnel $1,004,634 $1,041,653 3.7% 
Operations $614,125 $598,300 11.0% 
Capital Outlay $40,000 $213,000 432.5% 
Capital Improvements $381,100 $180,000 -51.6% 
Contingency $15,000 $15,000 0.0% 
Reserve for Bond Payment $204,270 $203,974 -0.1% 
Transfer to Water Capital Reserve Fund $0 $149,323 100.0% 
Total Expenditures: $2,259,129 $2,401,250 6.3% 

Water Fund Revenue Highlights 

• Water Rates: In accordance with recent water rates analysis provided by Withers-Ravenel,
the fiscal year 2019-2020 budget includes a 5.0% increase in water rates for all Town water
customers. The rates, as recommended by this analysis will continue to fund the Water Fund
and will assist the Town in planning for the eventual water plant expansion.

Water Fund Expenditure Highlights 

Capital Equipment & Improvements 

• Vehicle Replacements:  In conformity with the Town’s vehicle replacement guidelines, funds
are budgeted for the replacement of one (1) truck and one (1) dump truck for the Water
Department.

• Capital Equipment: Funds are budgeted for a replacement air compressor and two (2) pump
rebuilds for water operations.

• Capital Improvements:  Within the Water budgets, there are funds budgeted for waterline
improvements to the Coleman Street and Shuford Road and the abandonment of an asbestos
line. In addition, and as the Town has budgeted annually in the past, funds are included to
replace old water meters with automated radio-read meters.

New Initiatives 

• North Buncombe Middle School Waterline Match:  The Town has been approached by the
Buncombe County Public Schools System to request financial assistance in making water
related improvements totaling $150,000 at North Buncombe Middle School. In an effort to
assist the school system with this project, this budget includes $75,000 in financial assistance.

In Closing 

The Town has accomplished much in the current fiscal year, including the Comprehensive Land Use 
planning process; implementation of a new Strategic Plan; secured USDA funding for a major 

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 

8 46



waterline improvement project; entering the planning phase of the Reems Creek Greenway project; 
and entering into the design and development phase of the Lake Louise Community Center project.  

Included with this budget message, you will find an executive summary of the budget. As noted in 
the budget calendar, the public hearing on the budget is scheduled for June 11, 2019 at 6:00pm, 
with adoption scheduled for your regular meeting on June 17, 2019.   

The Town’s management team has been instrumental in the development of this budget. Our team 
has done an exceptional job at controlling costs while their departments have continued to provide 
the high-quality services that our citizens deserve. I would like to extend a special thanks to them 
for their time and effort during this budget process. Furthermore, I wish to express my gratitude to 
Finance Director Tonya Dozier. She has been instrumental in analyzing revenues and expenditures, 
assisting department heads with their budget requests and assisting me in developing the proposed 
fiscal year 2019-2020 budget.  

The fiscal year 2019-2020 budget reflects the challenges typical with a growing community, but it 
also reflects the Town’s capacity to provide excellent services to our residents, businesses and 
visitors.  It has been my pleasure to serve the Town of Weaverville, the Mayor and Town Council, 
and our citizens and to serve alongside our management team and employees. I hope to have many 
more years serving this wonderful community. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 
Town Manager / Budget Officer 

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 

9 47



PROPOSED BUDGET
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Budgets by Department, Function & Category

GENERAL FUND REVENUE
FY 2019 

Amended 
Budget

FY 2020 
Preliminary 

Draft
$ Variance % Variance

Prior Year Tax Revenue $2,500 $1,000 ($1,500) -60.0%
Prior Year Interest & Penalties $200 $0 ($200) -100.0%
Ad Valorem Tax Revenue $3,008,164 $3,215,564 $207,400 6.9%
DMV Tax Revenue $250,000 $255,000 $5,000 2.0%
Tax Penalties & Interest $4,000 $4,000 $0 0.0%
Utilities Franchise Tax $450,000 $470,000 $20,000 4.4%
Beer & Wine Tax $16,000 $17,000 $1,000 6.3%
Powell Bill Distributions $106,000 $106,000 $0 0.0%
Local Government Sales Tax $1,250,000 $1,396,000 $146,000 11.7%
Buncombe County Fire Protection $1,387,000 $1,616,629 $229,629 16.6%
ABC Store Distribution to Town $90,000 $120,000 $30,000 33.3%
ABC Store Alcohol Education $1,392 $0 ($1,392) -100.0%
ABC Store Police Department $3,595 $0 ($3,595) -100.0%
Cell Tower Revenue $16,000 $16,000 $0 0.0%
Miscellaneous Revenue $7,500 $5,000 ($2,500) -33.3%
Interest Earned $84,000 $115,500 $31,500 37.5%
Interest Earned-Powell Bill $300 $3,400 $3,100 1033.3%
Zoning Inspections Fees $25,000 $20,000 ($5,000) -20.0%
Fire Inspections Fees $300 $500 $200 66.7%
Sale of Property $5,000 $15,000 $10,000 200.0%
Appropriated Fund Balance $824,774 $184,933 ($639,841) -77.6%
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE $7,531,726 $7,561,526 $29,799 0.4%

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
FY 2019 

Amended 
Budget

FY 2020 
Preliminary 

Draft
$ Variance % Variance

$0 
Town Council
Personnel $89,522 $106,751 $17,229 19.2%
Operations $157,240 $146,400 ($10,840) -6.9%
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 --

Total $246,762 $253,151 $6,389 2.6%

Administration
Personnel $434,099 $425,389 ($8,710) -2.0%
Operations $174,185 $174,250 $65 0.0%
Capital Outlay $53,000 $0 ($53,000) -100.0%

Total $661,284 $599,639 ($61,645) -9.3%

Planning & Code Enforcement
Personnel $87,079 $96,859 $9,780 11.2%
Operations $19,670 $11,600 ($8,070) -41.0%

Total $106,749 $108,459 $1,710 1.6%

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 
 

10 48



Police Department
Personnel $1,281,999 $1,418,647 $136,648 10.7%
Operations $329,165 $345,239 $16,074 4.9%
Capital Outlay $95,000 $105,000 $10,000 10.5%

Total $1,706,165 $1,868,886 $162,722 9.5%

Fire Department
Personnel $1,814,741 $1,991,501 $176,760 9.7%
Operations $330,211 $345,755 $15,544 4.7%
Capital Outlay $0 $44,000 $44,000 #DIV/0!

Total $2,144,952 $2,381,256 $236,304 11.0%

Public Works: All Divisions
Personnel $772,735 $811,236 $38,501 5.0%
Operations $496,883 $520,090 $23,207 4.7%
Capital Outlay $50,999 $90,000 $39,001 76.5%
Capital Improvements $967,900 $534,000 ($433,900) -44.8%

Total $2,288,517 $1,955,326 ($333,191) -14.6%

Debt Service
Loan Payment-Fire Truck 09/14 $53,541 $53,541 $0 0.0%
Loan Payment-Fire Trucks $74,707 $75,000 $293 0.4%
Loan Payment-Fire Station $250,145 $246,268 ($3,877) -1.6%

Total $378,393 $374,809 ($3,584) -0.9%

Contingency Total $20,000 $20,000 $0 0.0%

Total General Fund Revenue $7,531,726 $7,561,526 $29,799 0.4%

Total General Fund Expenditures $7,552,822 $7,561,526 $8,704 0.1%

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 
 

11 49



WATER FUND REVENUE
FY 2019 

Amended 
Budget

FY 2020 
Preliminary 

Draft
$ Variance % Variance

Water Revenue $1,845,000 $1,968,750 $123,750 6.7%
Miscellaneous Revenue $17,000 $15,000 ($2,000) -11.8%
Water Taps $35,000 $42,000 $7,000 20.0%
System Development Fees $130,000 $270,000 $140,000 107.7%
Fees for MSD Collection $50,000 $55,000 $5,000 10.0%
Interest Earned $38,000 $50,500 $12,500 32.9%
Appropriated Fund Balance $144,128 $0 ($144,128) -100.0%
Total Water Fund Revenue $2,259,128 $2,401,250 $142,122 6.3%

WATER FUND EXPENDITURES
FY 2019 

Amended 
Budget

FY 2020 
Preliminary 

Draft
$ Variance % Variance

Water Fund
Personnel $1,004,634 $1,041,653 $37,019 3.7%
Operations $614,125 $598,300 ($15,825) -2.6%
Capital Outlay $40,000 $213,000 $173,000 432.5%
Capital Improvements $381,100 $180,000 ($201,100) -52.8%

Total $2,039,859 $2,032,953 ($6,906) -0.3%

Contingency Total $15,000 $15,000 $0 0.0%

Reserve for Bond Payment $204,270 $203,974 ($296) -0.1%

Transfer to Water Capital Reserve $0 $149,323 $149,323 100.0%

Total Water Fund Revenue $2,259,128 $2,401,250 $142,122 6.3%

Total Water Fund Expenditures $2,259,129 $2,401,250 $142,121 6.3%

GRAND TOTAL BUDGET $9,811,951 $9,962,776 $150,825 1.5%

FY 2019-2020 Budget Message & Executive Summary 
 

12 50



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

DATE OF MEETING:  April 15, 2019  

SUBJECT: Personnel Related Policies 
 
PRESENTER:   Town Manager/Town Attorney 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Excerpts from the Personnel Policy 

Draft Voluntary Shared Leave Policy 
    Draft Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance Policy 
 
DESCRIPTION: 

At its workshop on April 9, 2019, Town Council reviewed the following policies: 
Information Technology and Internet Use Policy, Social Media Policy, Equipment and 
Vehicle Use Policy, and Workplace Violence Prevention Policy. By consensus Town 
Council confirmed the delegation of adoption of all of these policies to the Town 
Manager except for the Workplace Violence Prevention Policy. That policy will be 
brought back to Town Council for adoption with the consolidated Personnel Policy. 

Town Council is asked to continue its review of the last few personnel-related policies. 
The following draft policies will be reviewed at tonight’s meeting: 

Voluntary Shared Leave Policy  – Town Council originally adopted a voluntary 
shared leave policy in January 2012. Staff proposes that it be amended and 
replaced by the attached draft policy in order to provide for a more limited 
program.  

Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance Policy – This is a new policy 
which is recommended for adoption for full compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. It provides broad protections against discrimination affecting 
candidates, employees and citizens with qualified disabilities. 

The Alcohol and Substance Abuse/Drug-Free Workplace is in the process of being updated 
and reviewed by staff. This policy was adopted by a previous Town Manager. Town Council 
discussion on this continued delegation is appropriate.  

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Discussion on the delegation and substance of these policies is requested in order to 
finalize the consolidated Personnel Policy draft which will be presented for review by 
Town Council in May or June.  

51



Personnel Policy Excerpts 
Article V - Conditions of Employment 

 

Section 12.  Voluntary Shared Leave Program 

There are occurrences brought about by prolonged medical conditions that cause 
employees to exhaust all available leave and therefore be placed on leave without pay. It is 
recognized that such employees forced to go without pay could be without income at the 
most critical point in their work life. It is also recognized that fellow employees may wish 
to voluntarily donate some of their annual leave so as to provide assistance to a fellow 
Town employee. This policy provides an opportunity for employees to assist another 
affected by a medical condition that requires absence from duty for a prolonged period of 
time resulting in possible loss of income due to lack of accumulated leave. This program 
shall be called the “Town of Weaverville Voluntary Shared Leave Program” and 
administered under the provisions contained in Article XVIII of this Policy. 

 

Section 13.  Drug-Free Workplace 

All aspects of society are harmed by illicit drug use, with the workplace being especially 
impacted. Providing a positive work environment is a high priority for the Town and, to 
that end, the Town provides a drug-free workplace for all employees. The Town Manager 
shall establish policies and procedures related to employee substance abuse in order to 
ensure the safety and well-being of citizens and employees, and to comply with any federal, 
state or other laws and regulations. Employees are expected to follow the guidelines, 
policies and procedures adopted by the Town Manager. 

52



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
VOLUNTARY SHARED LEAVE PROGRAM 

1 
 

Section 1. Purpose and Objectives 

There are occurrences brought about by prolonged medical conditions that cause 
employees to exhaust all available leave resulting in being placed on leave without pay. 
It is recognized that such employees who are forced to go on leave without pay could be 
without income at the most critical point in their work life. It is also recognized that 
fellow employees may wish to voluntarily donate some of their annual  leave so as to 
provide assistance to a fellow Town employee.  

This program provides an opportunity for employees to assist others affected by a 
medical condition that requires absence from duty for a prolonged period of time 
resulting in possible loss of income due to lack of accumulated leave. 

Section 2.  Definitions 

Donor – Town employee who donates leave 

Immediate family – An employee’s spouse or domestic partner, parent, sibling, child, 
grandparent or grandchild, aunt or uncle, niece or nephew, guardian or ward; step- and 
half- relations of the aforementioned; and the corresponding relatives of the employee's 
spouse or domestic partner. 

LGERS – The North Carolina Local Government Employees’ Retirement System  

Prolonged medical condition – Serious medical condition (including but not limited to 
heart attack, stroke, cancer, serious injury, and/or related medically necessary 
operations) which requires an absence from work for 20 or more consecutive workdays 

Prolonged period of time – 20 or more consecutive workdays 

Recipient – Town employee who receives donated leave 

Regular full-time employee – An employee who has successfully completed the 
designated probationary period and who is in a position for which an average work week 
is at least 32 hours and for which at least 12 months continuous employment is needed.   

Regular part-time employee – An employee who has successfully completed the 
designated initial probationary period and who is in a position for which an average work 
week is at least 20 hours but less than 32 hours and for which at least 12 months 
continuous employment is needed.   

Section 3.  Applicability 

Only regular full-time and regular part-time employees of the Town are eligible to donate 
or receive leave under this policy. 

Section 4. Policy   

A regular full-time or regular part-time employee of the Town may voluntarily transfer 
annual leave to another regular full-time or regular part-time employee of the Town for 

53



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
VOLUNTARY SHARED LEAVE PROGRAM 

2 
 

use as sick leave, subject to the provisions of this policy and subject to approval by the 
Town Manager. Establishment of a leave “bank” for use by unnamed employees is 
expressly prohibited. Leave must be donated on a one-to-one personal basis. 

Section 5. Intimidation and Coercion Prohibited 

An employee may not intimidate, threaten, coerce, bribe, or attempt to intimidate, 
threaten, coerce, or bribe, any other employee for the purpose of interfering with any 
right which such employee may have with respect to donating, receiving, or using leave 
under this program. Such action shall be grounds for disciplinary action up to and 
including dismissal on the basis of personal conduct and/or harassment. 

Section 6. Qualifications and Conditions for Recipients 

a. General Eligibility - In order to receive donated leave, a recipient must meet all 
of the following qualifications: 

• Be an active employee of the Town (not separated from the Town); 
• Be in a position that earns leave; 
• Have a prolonged medical condition or be the primary caregiver for an 

immediate family member residing in the recipient’s household and 
experiencing a prolonged medical condition and; 

• Have insufficient sick and annual leave balances to cover the prolonged 
medical condition; 

• Apply for or be nominated to become a recipient; 
• Produce medical evidence to support the need for leave beyond the 

accumulated leave available for use by the employee; 
• Be in compliance with existing leave rules; and 
• Be approved by the Town Manager. 

b. Eligibility for Employees on Maternity Leave – An employee on maternity leave 
may be eligible to receive donated leave to cover the period of disability related 
to the pregnancy and/or birth as documented by a physician. Donated shared 
leave cannot be used for parental care of a newborn child absent a documented 
prolonged medical condition.  

c. Eligibility for Employees Receiving Disability Benefits Through LGERS – An 
employee who is receiving disability benefits from the Local Government 
Employees’ Retirement System is not eligible to participate in the program. 
Donated leave may, however, be used during the required waiting period and 
following the waiting period provided that disability benefits have not yet begun.  

d. Short-Term and/or Sporadic Conditions Not Covered –This policy will not 
ordinarily apply to short-term or sporadic conditions or illnesses. This would 
include such things as sporadic, short-term recurrences of chronic allergies or 
conditions, short-term absences due to contagious diseases; or short-term, 

54



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
VOLUNTARY SHARED LEAVE PROGRAM 

3 
 

recurring medical or therapeutic treatments. These examples are illustrative and 
not all inclusive. Each case must be examined and decided based on its conformity 
to policy intent and must be handled consistently and equitably. 

e. Coverage for Care of Immediate Family – This policy is meant to provide an 
opportunity for coworkers to donate annual leave to an employee who is: (1) 
experiencing a prolonged medical condition, or (2) serving as the primary 
caregiver for an immediate family member residing with the employee and 
experiencing a prolonged medical condition.  

f. Using Donated Leave – Donated leave will be credited to the recipient’s sick leave 
balance and must be used in accordance with the Town’s sick leave policies except 
as provided herein. Donated leave must be used in half day or whole day 
increments. Donated leave will generally not be allowed to be used on an 
intermittent basis.  An employee may begin using donated leave after all of the 
employee’s available sick and annual leave has been exhausted, and can be 
retroactively applied for up to 30 days if the recipient used leave without pay 
related to the prolonged medical condition. While using donated leave, the 
employee continues to earn leave. When accounting for leave, sick and annual 
leave accrued by the employee should be used first. Under no circumstance can 
donated leave be used to receive creditable service with LGERS.  

g. Maximum Amount of Leave Received  – The maximum amount of donated leave 
a recipient may receive for each prolonged medical condition is 480 hours  
(prorated for part-time employees). 

h. Effect of Resignation, Retirement or Death of Recipient – If a recipient 
separates from the Town for any reason, including resignation, retirement, or 
death, participation in the program ends.  

i. Return of Unused Donated Leave – Any donated leave that is unused by the 
recipient when either the prolonged medical condition has ended or the recipient 
separates from employment with the Town, shall be returned to the donor(s) on 
a prorata basis and credited to the same account from which it originally came.  

Section 7. Qualifications and Conditions for Donors  

a. General Eligibility – In order to donate leave an employee  must at the time of 
donation: 

• Be an active employee of the Town (not separated from the Town); 
• Be in a position that earns leave;  
• Have an annual leave balance that would not be reduced below a minimum 

of 80 hours after the donation of leave; 
• Be in compliance with existing leave rules; and 
• Be approved by the Town Manager. 

55



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
VOLUNTARY SHARED LEAVE PROGRAM 

4 
 

b. Restriction on Type of Leave Donated – Only annual leave may be donated 
under this policy.   

c. Minimum and Maximum Leave Donated – The number of annual leave hours 
that can be transferred by an employee donor is a minimum of 4 hours and a 
maximum of 40 hours each calendar year per employee recipient. 

d. Timing of Donation – The transfer of annual leave can occur at any time during 
the calendar year except that no leave transfers shall be approved within 60 days 
of the date of an employee’s retirement, resignation or other anticipated 
separation from the Town.   

e. Transfers are Irreversible – Except for the return of unused donated leave and 
for corrections associated with mistakes or violations of policy, after leave is 
transferred it is irreversible. 

Section 8. Application and Approval 

A prospective recipient shall apply or be nominated by a fellow employee to participate 
in the program. An application for shared leave must be submitted on approved forms 
and must be accompanied by medical evidence supporting the need for leave beyond the 
available accumulated leave.  A recommendation of the employee’s department head and 
the Human Resources Officer’s certification of leave balances of the recipient employee 
and the donor employee must be submitted to the Town Manager with the application. 
The Town Manager shall review the merits of the request and approve or disapprove the 
sharing of leave, in his or her sole discretion.  

Section 9. Confidentiality 

Medical information is confidential. When disclosing information on an approved 
recipient, only a statement that the recipient has a prolonged medical condition needs to 
be made. If the employee wishes to make the medical status public, the employee must 
sign a release to allow the status to be known. Confidentiality also extends to the 
identification of donors. It is up to individual employees to share whether they have 
donated leave under this policy. 

Section 10. Leave Records and Accounting 

The Town’s Human Resources Officer shall establish a system of leave accountability 
which provides a clear and accurate record for financial and management audit purposes. 

Leave donated shall be: 

• Kept confidential (only individual employees may reveal their donation or receipt 
of leave); 

• Deducted from the donor’s annual leave account; 
• Credited to the recipient’s sick leave account and charged according to the Town’s 

sick leave policy; and 

56



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
VOLUNTARY SHARED LEAVE PROGRAM 

5 
 

• Available for use on a current basis or may be retroactive for up to 30 calendar 
days to substitute for leave without pay.  

Section 11. Violations  

Any employee found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to prompt disciplinary 
action under the Town’s Personnel Policy, up to and including dismissal. 

Section 12. Adoption and Effective Date 

This policy is adopted by the Town Manager pursuant to Section 12 of Article XIV [or 
inserted as Article XVIII] of the Town’s Personnel Policy and may, from time-to-time be 
amended by the Town Manager under that same authority.  This policy is effective 
immediately upon adoption. 

 

ADOPTED BY the Town Manager/Town Council on the _____ day of April, 2019. 

 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

 
By:             
 Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 
 Town Manager 

57



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES 

COMPLIANCE POLICY 

1 
 

Section 1.  Purpose and Objectives 

It is the policy of the Town to afford equal employment opportunity to all qualified 
individuals with disabilities as defined in the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act Amendment Act (ADAAA) in all employment-related 
decisions. As part of this policy, the Town will work to seek reasonable accommodations 
for applicants in the employment process, qualified employees with disabilities and for 
applicants with disabilities who have been offered employment. 

The Town has long recognized that its employees are its most valuable asset. Accordingly, 
it is Town policy to support employees and candidates affected by mental or physical 
impairments, which may limit their opportunities to be productive. It is the Town’s intent 
to provide support and assistance, consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act and 
business demands, within reason, to qualified individuals who are disabled. As appropriate, 
the Town will attempt to eliminate barriers to employment in order to afford all individuals 
opportunities to pursue available employment to the extent of their abilities and talents. 

The cooperation of all employees is expected and necessary to make this policy a reality. 
Employees with questions about this policy, reasonable accommodation, or who feel they 
have been treated unfairly because of a disability, perceived disability, or record of a 
disability should contact the ADA Coordinator as designated in this policy.  

Section 2.  Definitions 

ADA – Includes collectively the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act Amendment Act of 2008, and any subsequent amendments thereto. 

Communicable disease – An illness due to an infectious agent or its toxic products which is 
transmitted directly or indirectly to a person from infected person or animal through the 
agency of an intermediate animal, host or vector, or through the inanimate environment, 
pursuant to NCGS 130A-133(1). The term shall include, but is not limited to: acquired 
autoimmune deficiency syndrome (“AIDS”), AIDS-related complex, human 
immunodeficiency virus (“HIV”) infection, hepatitis A, B, or C, and tuberculosis. 

Direct threat to safety – A significant risk to the health or safety of the individual or others 
that cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation. 

Disability – A person is “disabled” under this policy if that person has a physical or mental 
impairment that substantially limits him or her in one or more major life activities. 

Essential job function – The basic job duties that an employee must be able to perform in 
his or her assigned job, with or without reasonable accommodation. Factors to be 
considered in determining if a function is essential include: (a) whether the reason the 
position exists is to perform that function, (b) the number of other employees available to 
perform that function or among whom the performance of the function can be distributed, 
(c) the degree of expertise or skill required to perform the function, (d) the time spent 
performing a function, and (e) the consequences of not requiring that an employee perform 
a function.  

58



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES 

COMPLIANCE POLICY 

2 
 

Qualified individual with a disability – An employee or candidate with a disability who 
has the necessary skill, education, experience, and other job-related requirements to 
perform the essential functions of a position with or without a “reasonable 
accommodation.” 

Reasonable accommodation –  

Reasonable accommodation is any modification or adjustment to a job, job schedule 
or the work environment that will enable a qualified candidate or employee with a 
disability to participate in the application process or to perform essential job 
functions, or enjoy other benefits of employment without imposing an undue 
hardship on the Town or imposing a direct threat of safety to the individual or 
others in the workplace.  

Examples of reasonable accommodation may include modifying existing facilities 
used by employees readily accessible to and usable by an individual with a 
disability; restructuring a job; modifying work schedules; acquiring or modifying 
equipment; providing qualified readers or interpreters; or appropriately modifying 
examinations, training, or other programs.  

Reasonable accommodation may also include reassigning a current employee to a 
vacant position for which the individual is qualified if the person is unable to do the 
original job because of a disability even with an accommodation and no other 
accommodations exist. However, there is no obligation to find or create a position as 
an accommodation. The Town is not required to lower quality or quantity standards 
as an accommodation, nor is it obligated to provide personal use items such as 
glasses or hearing aids. The Town is not required to reallocate essential job 
functions of a job as a reasonable accommodation.  

Undue hardship – The point at which an accommodation would be unduly costly, 
extensive, substantial or disruptive, or would fundamentally alter the nature or operation 
of the business. 

Section 3.  ADA Coordinator 

The Town has designated the Town Manager, or designee, to handle issues related to the 
ADA. All requests for reasonable accommodation, auxiliary communication aids and 
services, alternative accessible formats for notices, policies, and other information, as well 
as complaints regarding the Town’s ADA program should be directed to the ADA 
Coordinator as follows: 

Town Manager 
Weaverville Town Hall 
30 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
 828-645-7116 

 

59



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES 

COMPLIANCE POLICY 

3 
 

Section 4.  Complaint Procedures 

Complaints of alleged discrimination on the basis of disability by the Town may be filed by 
job applicants, employees, and members of the general public, by using the grievance 
procedures set forth in Article XII of the Town’s Personnel Policy. 

The grievance procedures shall be distributed to members of the general public upon 
request for persons with disabilities. Any complaints relating to the ADA shall be 
considered confidential and kept separate from an employee’s personnel file.  

Section 5.  No Retaliation 

Individuals who oppose any act or practice that is unlawful under any title of the ADA, or 
who make a charge, testify, assist, or participate in any investigation, proceedings, or 
hearing under the ADA will not be retaliated against, nor will they be coerced, intimidated, 
threatened, or interfered with in the exercise or enjoyment of any ADA right. Job applicants 
or employees who may have a friend, associate, or family member with a disability are also 
covered by this ADA nondiscrimination policy pursuant to the ADA.  

Section 6. Communicable Diseases 

The Town shall not exclude from employment, participation in programs, or receipt of 
services individuals with communicable diseases or a related condition unless a 
determination is made by the Town Manager that such individual presents a direct threat 
or significant risk of substantial harm to the health or safety of the individual or others that 
cannot be eliminated or reduced by reasonable accommodation. It is the policy of the Town 
to consider the employment status or participation of an individual with a communicable 
disease on an individual case-by-case basis and in accordance with the ADA. 

Section 7. Confidentiality of Medical Records 

All information obtained by the Town regarding an applicant’s or employee’s disability, 
medical condition, request for reasonable accommodation, or workers’ compensation shall 
be maintained on separate forms and in medical files which are separate from the regular 
personnel files. All medical files and records will be treated as confidential. 
Access to medical information shall be given for the following reasons only: 

a. To supervisors who may be told only about work restrictions for an applicant 
or employee;  

b. To first aid and safety officials where emergency treatment might be 
required; 

c. To government officials charged with enforcement of disability laws, 
including the ADA; and 

d. Human Resources staff and legal counsel on an as-needed basis. 

 

60



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES 

COMPLIANCE POLICY 

4 
 

Section 8. Reasonable Accommodation 

The Town will make reasonable accommodations whenever necessary for all qualified 
employees or candidates for employment with disabilities (as defined by applicable law), 
provided that:  

1. The individual is otherwise qualified to safely perform the essential job 
functions of the job, and  

2. Such accommodations do not impose undue hardship on the Town. 

Where a job or work assignment is subject to health or medical standards required for 
assignments or deployments in support of the military, this policy does not require 
employment of an employee or candidate who cannot satisfy those standards. 

A. Requesting an Accommodation – Employee – If an employee has a disability that 
requires an accommodation in order to perform the essential functions of his or her 
job, or otherwise enjoy the benefits and privileges of employments, he or she  must 
initiate a request for accommodation by contacting his or her direct supervisor, the 
Human Resources Officer, or Town Manager, and identify an adjustment or change 
at work that is needed because of a disability. 

B. Requesting an Accommodation – Candidate – If a candidate for employment has 
a disability that requires an accommodation in order to apply for a job, he or she 
must initiate the request for accommodation by contacting Human Resources 
Officer or Town Manager and identifying an adjustment or change in the application 
or system that is needed because of a disability. 

C. Participation in the Interactive Process –  

i. An employee seeking an accommodation under this policy will engage 
in an interactive dialogue (the “interactive process”) with his or her 
supervisory, department head, and Human Resources Officer, to 
identify an accommodation that will allow the employee to perform 
the essential functions of the job effectively or engage in other 
benefits and privileges of employment that are enjoyed by similarly 
situated employees without disabilities. 

ii. If the Town is able to accommodate the request as a result of the 
interactive process, without the need for supporting medical 
documentation or other information, the employee does not need to 
proceed with any further steps outlined in this process. 

iii. The ADA Coordinator has the responsibility to secure a final decision 
about questions regarding the implementation of an accommodation 
related to whether the medical condition is a qualifying disability 
under the ADA. In the event that additional medical information is 
needed to determine what accommodations may be necessary the 
ADA Coordinator will secure a release of medical information from 

61



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES 

COMPLIANCE POLICY 

5 
 

the employee in order to obtain the medical information that is 
needed to make such a determination.  

iv. The employee must cooperate with Human Resources in submitting 
necessary medical documentation and/or providing a release of 
medical information that permits HR to communicate with the 
employee’s health care provider(s). The employee must return all 
forms and responsive information within 15 days of the request. 
Processing the request for accommodation may not proceed until all 
required forms have been completed and returned to Human 
Resources.  

v. HR will review the completed request for accommodation forms 
received from the employee and/or the employee’s health care 
provider. If the information provided is incomplete or requires 
further clarification, HR may request additional information from the 
employee or his or her health care provider.  

D. Determination – If, based on medical and other information provided by the 
employee and/or his or her health care provider, the employee is determined to be 
a qualified individual with a disability, the ADA Coordinator will notify the 
employee, supervisor, department head and Town Manager. The ADA Coordinator 
will work with the employee and the department head to identify and discuss 
reasonable accommodations that will enable the employee to perform the essential 
functions of the job or to participate in the same benefits and privileges of 
employment enjoyed by similarly situated employees without benefits. In instances 
where there is no reasonable accommodation that enables the employee to perform 
the essential functions of the job, including unpaid leave and assignment to a vacant 
position, the employee may be terminated. 

E. Responsibilities – Employees/Candidates – Employees and candidates with a 
disability that interferes with their ability to apply for a job, perform their essential 
job functions or otherwise enjoy the benefits and privileges of employment that are 
available to other similarly situated employees without disabilities, and who desire 
an accommodation, must follow the process set forth above. The employee or 
candidate who requests an accommodation has the responsibility to submit all 
required documentation on a timely basis and to remain engaged in the interactive 
process with the Town while a determination is being made. It is the employee’s 
responsibility  to work with his or her supervisor/department head, ADA 
Coordinator and qualified health care professional to review and complete all forms 
required. Any failure by the employee to supply the Town with all relevant and 
requested medical information or to otherwise meaningfully cooperate in the 
interactive process may result in the Town’s denial of an accommodation or delay in 
the process.  

F. Responsibilities – Management – The Town Manager and all department heads 
are responsible for ensuring that all employees under their supervision are fully 

62



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES 

COMPLIANCE POLICY 

6 
 

aware of the Town’s reasonable accommodation policy and equal employment 
opportunity and non-discrimination policy. When an employee requests an 
accommodation, supervisors and department heads must participate in the 
interactive process with the employee to determine if a reasonable accommodation 
can be made, with or without seeking additional information about the employee’s 
medical condition. 

If the ADA Coordinator determines that an employee’s medical condition is a 
qualifying disability under the ADA, supervisors and department heads must 
continue to work with the employee to identify existing reasonable 
accommodations that will enable the employee to perform the essential functions of 
his or her job.  

G. Responsibilities – ADA Coordinator – The ADA Coordinator is responsible for 
determining whether an individual is entitled to an accommodation under the terms 
of this policy, assisting in the interactive process to identify reasonable 
accommodations as necessary, and informing employees of their rights and 
obligations pursuant to this policy. The ADA Coordinator is responsible for ensuring 
appropriate confidentiality of employees’ and candidates’ medical information, 
consistent with Town policy and state and federal law. 

Section 9. Violations  

Any employee found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to prompt disciplinary 
action under the Town’s Personnel Policy, up to and including dismissal. 

Section 10. Adoption and Effective Date 

This policy is adopted by the Town Manager and may, from time-to-time be amended by 
the Town Manager under that same authority.  This policy is effective immediately upon 
adoption. 
 
ADOPTED BY the Town Manager/Town Council on the _____ day of April, 2019. 
 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 
 
By:             
 Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 
 Town Manager 
 

63



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019  

SUBJECT:  Ratification of Interlocal Agreement – Fire Departments 
and First Due Size-Up Program  

PRESENTER:  Town Attorney/Fire Chief 

ATTACHMENTS:  Interlocal Agreement 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The First Due Size-Up program is a dispatch and pre-plan tool that allows 
emergency responders to have as much information as possible about the location 
they are responding to. The program pulls information from many different data 
bases such as GIS, tax records, permits and inspections, fire department pre-plans 
and many more to create a picture of the location with drawings, maps and 
pertinent information prior to arrival. Many departments have pre-plans on 
commercial structures that may or may not be a quick reference tool but this 
program provides a picture of all locations, even residential, and has been proven to 
give 100% credit for pre-plans in DOI/ISO inspections within North Carolina. There 
is also a Community Connect module with the program that will allow citizens with 
any kind of special need to be identified and allows responding agencies to better 
help these citizens during times of emergency that could potentially affect them.  

The cost of the program is $911.58 for each of the 19 departments and the Town, 
through the attached interlocal agreement, agreed to be the purchasing agent in 
order to take advantage of a $7,000 grant and a quantity discount and get this 
program available to all emergency departments in Buncombe County.   

The vendor is finishing up its installation and the system should be operational for 
Weaverville Fire Department and others as early as next week. 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to ratify the interlocal agreement. 

64



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into as of the 1st day of 

March, 2019, by and between the TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE ("Town"), and BUNCOMBE 

COUNTY RESCUE SQUAD, FAIRVIEW FIRE DEPARTMENT, BLACK MOUNTAIN FIRE 

DEPARTMENT, WEST BUNCOMBE FIRE DEPARTMENT, SWANNANOA FIRE 

DEPARTMENT, WEAVERVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT, REYNOLDS FIRE DEPARTMENT, 

ENKA FIRE DEPARTMENT, RICEVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT, UPPER HOMINY FIRE 

DEPARTMENT, REEMS CREEK FIRE DEPARTMENT, BARNARDSVILLE FIRE 

DEPARTMENT, JUPITER FIRE DEPARTMENT, LEICESTER FIRE DEPARTMENT, FRENCH 

BROAD FIRE DEPARTMENT, WOODFIN FIRE DEPARTMENT, SKYLAND FIRE 

DEPARTMENT, BROAD RIVER FIRE DEPARTMENT, AND GARREN CREEK FIRE 

DEPARTMENT (collectively "the departments"); 

WHEREAS, First Due Size-Up is a software program that provides immediate and 

valuable information to aid fire and rescue workers during emergency situations; 

WHEREAS, all of the fire departments operating within Buncombe County and the 

Buncombe County Rescue Squad have determined that First Due Size-Up is a program that 

will have a significant benefit to emergency response in Buncombe County and the safety of 

the emergency responders ("Program"); 

WHEREAS, the City of Asheville Fire Department is already using the program and 

the remaining fire departments and Buncombe County Rescue Squad, all of which are a 

party to this Agreement, wish to implement the program so that it is available and in use 

throughout Buncombe County; 

WHEREAS, at the urging of the Buncombe County Emergency Management Director, 

Buncombe County was attempting to secure the Program but has recently delayed its 

funding despite a well-negotiated and reasonable quote from Locality Media, Inc. and grant 

funds in the amount of $7,000; 

WHEREAS, the fire departments and Buncombe County Rescue Squad (collectively 

"the departments") wish to obtain the program at the discounted amount offered by 

Locality Media, Inc., but the discounted cost and grant funding apply only to a single invoice 

which cannot be broken out into separate invoices for each department; 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has agreed to act as purchasing agent and 

secure the program for use by the fire departments upon the condition that the 

departments agree to reimburse the Town of Weaverville for such payment as set forth in 

this Agreement; 

1 

65



66



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Interlocal Agreement as of the 
effective date written above. 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

By: 
SELENA D. COFFEY, Town Manager 

By signing below, you acknowledge that you have the authority to enter into this 
Agreement on behalf of your department and/ or non-profit corporation under which your 
department operates and to obligate your department to the terms contained herein: 

BUNCOMBE COUNTY RESCUE SQUAD� (['
:J w4 

 

Z:\Fire\Interlocal Agreement - First Due Size-Up Pnigram - February 2019.docx 

3 

67

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image

jjackson
Placed Image



68



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Monday, April 15, 2019 

Subject: Setting a Public Hearing on the Proposed Voluntary 
Annexation Petition of 135 Monticello Road and the Initial 
Zoning Request of R-12 for the Same Property Described. 

Presenter:  Town Attorney / Planning Director 

Attachments: Voluntary Annexation Petition; Zoning Map Amendment 
Application; Certificate of Sufficiency; Planning and Zoning 
Board Recommendation 

Description: 

During the March 18 meeting of Council the Town Clerk was instructed to investigate the 
eligibility of a proposed annexation and the Planning and Zoning Board was instructed to 
examine the compliance with the Town’s adopted comprehensive land use plan with a 
desired initial zoning of R-12. These actions have occurred and attached you will find 
documentation reflective of same. 

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the setting of a public hearing before Town Council on Monday, May 20, 
2019 at 6:00pm, or at such time as Council reaches the matter, for the aforemen

69



CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY OF 
ANNEXATION PETITION 2019-1  

RIVERSIDE STUMP DUMP, INC., PROPERTY AT 
135 MONTICELLO ROAD 

TO THE WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL: 

I, Derek Huninghake, Weaverville Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have 
investigated the Voluntary Annexation Petition of Riverside Stump Dump, Inc., (Petition No. 
2019-1) and have found as a fact that the Petition is signed by all the owners of real 
property lying in the area described therein and that the area to be annexed is contiguous 
to the Town's primary boundary. 

Therefore, in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes § 160A-31, et seq., I 
certify that the Petition is valid and sufficient for the voluntary annexation of a contiguous 
area pursuant to said § 160A-31 et seq., of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town 
of Weaverville, this the 9th day of April, 2019. 

______________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

70



M
artin

Blank
D

eed
Book

1607
Page

174
P

IN
:9733515734

29

28

H
&

K
P

roperties
D

eed
Book

4608
Page

665
P

IN
:9733627514

C
rystalJean

PonderH
opkins

&
A

notherV
enture

LLC
D

eed
Book

4615
Page

467
P

IN
:9733721293Leonard

F.Ponder&
C

rystalJean
P

onderH
opkins

D
eed

Book
4135

Page
87

P
IN

:9733722097

H
M

V
H

N
-3VH

M
LLC

D
eed

Book
4375

Page
108

P
IN

:9733713521

N
71

N 03

N
o.5(0.4'ag)

0.75"O
P

(flush)

N
54

112.99'

N
68

S 38338.70' Tie only

R
eese

C
ap(0.4'ag)

R
eese

C
ap(0.4'bg)

LIN
E

B
EA

R
IN

G
D

IS
TAN

C
E

L1

L1
N

64
42.28'

L2

L2
N

37
18.74'

L3

L3
N

60
20.19'

L4
N

21
21.23'

L5
N

62
6.21'

L6
S

85
46.36'

L7 L7
S

52
11.64'

L8

L8
S

06
10.94'

L9 L9
S

40
9.10'

L10

L10
N

70
31.97'

L11

L11
S

89
34.53'

L12

L12
S

81
22.58'

L13

L13
S

59
35.78'

S
67

S
56

S
58

S
45

S
89268.30'

125.82'

S 19

C
urve

R
adius

A
rc

Length
C

hord
B

earing
C

hord
Length

C1

C
1

888.17'
164.06'

S
28

163.83'

L14

L14
S

22
62.47'

C
2

2017.39'
17.71'

S
22

17.71'

N
21

58.01'Tie
only

104.53'S 09

S
6319.91'

N
60

20.00'

N 27
51.63'

N 05
211.59'

156.74'

S 10

3165
+/-square

feet
0.073

A
cre

*H
atched

area
depicts

an
apparentgap

betw
een

right-of-w
ay

show
n

on
P

latBook
110

P
age

23
and

thatdescribed
in

C
onsent

Judgem
ent

recorded
in

D
eed

B
ook

1284
Page

693.N
o

recorded
instrum

entfound
granting

right-of-w
ay

orconveyance
ofhatched

area
to

N
C

D
epartm

entofTransportation.*
D

etail

A
rea

ofTract
19.397

Acres
(D

oes
notinclude

area
ofapparentgap)

branch

branch

asphalt

asphalt

pool

porch

barn

shed

block building

w
am

apa
cap(0.1'ag)

w
am

apa
cap(0.3'bg)

w
am

apa
cap(flush)

S
35

26.88'tie
only

N
o.5(0.4'ag)

P
osthole

in
C

oncrete
Found

branch
goes

underground
here

branch
re-em

erges
here

gate

N
85

61.61'tie
only

barbedwire

chain
link

w
oven

w
ire

R
ebarw

ith
ID

C
ap

Found
(N

am
e

on
C

ap)
R

ebarFound
(Size)

Iron
Pipe

Found
(D

escription)
N

o
5

R
ebarw

ith
ID

C
ap

Set(EH
A)

U
nm

arked
Point

C
oncrete

R
ight-of-W

ay
M

onum
ent

Fire
H

ydrant

U
tility

Pole
G

uy
W

ire

S
torm

S
ew

erM
anhole

W
oven

W
ire

orB
arbed

W
ire

Fence

A
bove

G
rade

B
elow

G
rade

O
pen

Pipe
P

olyvinylchloride
R

einforced
C

oncrete
Pipe

agbgO
P

P
VC

R
C

P

18" RCP

W
aterV

alve

G
as

Line
M

arker

S
73

1.0'tie
only

D
etail

S
ee

D
etailAbove

6"P
V

C
P

ipe
filled

w
ith

concrete

N
C

D
epartm

entofTransportation
D

eed
Book

1284
Page

693
P

rojectN
o.6.801760

R
ight-of-W

ay
M

ap
Book

1
P

age
300

C
urve

Table
Line

Table

trailer

S
1716.24'

gravel
drive

gate

S
ym

boland
Line

Legend

C
hain

Link
Fence

W
ood

Stockade
Fence

O
verhead

Electric
Line

O
verhead

Telephone
Line

A
bbreviation

Legend

E
d

H
olm

es
&

Associates
E

H
A

woven
wire

w
oven

w
ire

John
G

.&
M

arta
L

B
odenhorst

D
eed

Book
1962

page
752

P
IN

:9733528356

1-story brick, stone &

wood house

w
oven

w
ire

M
cM

ahan
cap

1"=10'

S
ee

D
etailofH

atched
Area

edge of pavement

edge of pavement
R

ight-of-W
ay

R
/W

0.5"O
P

(0.3'ag)

brushpile

brushpile
m

ulchpile

stum
ppile

debris
(scattered;dense

vegetation)

2180

2170

2160

2160

2150

2150

2150

2140

2120

2110

2100

2100

2090

2080

2070

2050

2170

2160
2150

2150

2150

2140

2140

2130

2130

2120

2120

2120

2110

2110

2100

2100

2090

2080

2070
2060

2050

2152

2154

2156

2154

2152

2148

Invert=2151.2

Invert=2151.4

Invert=2148.2

Invert=2150.5

2156

2152

2152

2154

2156

2156

2154

2152

2152

2058
2056

C
oncrete

row of oaks

30"H
ickory

20"H
ickory

52"O
ak

Tw
in

36"Beech

20"H
ickory

A
pproxim

ate
tie

to
M

S
D

m
anhole

#110184
located

nearthe
intersection

ofG
illR

d
w

ith
N

orthridge
C

om
m

ons
P

arkw
ay.M

anhole
location

based
on

inform
ation

obtained
from

M
SD

w
ebsite.

S
anitary

Sew
erM

anhole

S
pigot

W
ell

roof

Tree
(as

described) soil
road

18"R
C

P
(dam

aged)

Invert=2148.9

15" RCP

Invert=2149.2

Invert=2149.4

porch

poolhouse

2154

2148

21522160

septic
tank

2-story
block

&
w

ood
fram

e
house

gravel

gravel

gravel

A
pproxim

ate
location

of12"w
aterm

ain

A
pproxim

ate
location

of12"w
aterm

ain

12"W
aterLine

(approxim
ate

location)

W
oods

Line
approxim

ate;
draw

n
from

aerialphoto.

W
oods

Line
approxim

ate;
draw

n
from

aerialphoto.

G
illRoad

-S.R.1791
(60'RightofW

ay)

Gill Road - S.R. 1791
(60' Right of Way)

S
torm

S
ew

erD
rain

Inlet
S

torm
S

ew
erP

ipe

S
48

1115'

edge
ofpavem

entfrom
aerialphoto

D

D

0

Monticello Road - S.R. 1727

(Right of Way varies)

330.25'

S
87

79.62'
S

75
31.45'Tie

only

0.5"O
P

(0.8'ag-painted
orange)

L4 L5
L6

N
8399.09'

64.36'

S
69

88.36'

S
52

92.92'

134.52'

102.48'

254.00'

156.74'
S

10

2150

15" RCP
chain link

chain
link

w
oven

w
ire

barbed wire

w
oven

w
ire

chainlink

soilpiles

S
66

2388.83'

(platbearing)
(ground

distance)

deed line (typical)

R
ight-of-W

ay
line

from
C

onsentJudgem
ent

D
eed

Book
1284

Page
693

R
ight-of-W

ay
as

show
n

on
P

latBook
110

P
age

23

C2A

B

P
latB

ook
Page

P
.B

.Pg.

B
ranch

D
itch

D
eed

Line
R

ight-of-W
ay

Line

N
ote:G

ravelarea
approxim

ate;lines
draw

n
from

aerialphoto
and

field
observation.

N
C

G
S

M
onum

ent"G
ill"

E
xit19

M
onticello

R
oad

GillRd. U.S.25/70

U.S. 19/23/Future I-26

W
eaver

B
lvd.

Monticello Road

D
11-033A 71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

 
 

On Tuesday, April 2, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and unanimously recommended to 
Town Council a proposed initial zoning of R-12 for the property commonly known as 135 Monticello 
Road, 9733-62-6052. 
 
It has been found that the proposed initial zoning is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan 
in that the plan calls for a balance of residential uses. The Planning and Zoning Board considers 
approval both reasonable and in the public interest due to the desire of the proposed property owner 
to further develop the for multifamily residential purposes and finding that adjacent parcels of land 
are zoned R-12 creating contiguity of zoning districts.  
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 

Doug Theroux  
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________

79



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  April 15, 2019 

Subject: Setting a Public Hearing for a Proposed Conditional Zoning 
District at 37 Brown Street  

Presenter:   Planning Director 

Attachments: Sec.36-84 Conditional Zoning District; Site Plan; Planning and 
Zoning Board Recommendation 

Description: 

Staff is in possession of an executed conditional zoning district application for the property 
at 37 Brown Street. The application calls for the rehabilitation of an existing facility, 
commonly known as the Weaver College Boy’s Dormitory in such a fashion as to create no 
more than 16 dwelling units within same.   

The Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the application and plans on the nights of 
Tuesday, March 5 and Tuesday, April 2 and has unanimously passed the attached positive 
recommendation related to the project. 

Once the public hearing is set, staff will work in conjunction with the applicant to conduct 
the public involvement meeting made requisite by Sec.36-84(e)(3) prior to the next 
meeting of Council. 

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the setting of a public hearing before Town Council on Monday, May 20, 
2019 at 6:00pm, or at such time as Council reaches the matter, for the aforementioned 
proposed conditional zoning district.  

 

 

80



Sec. 36-84. - Conditional zoning district.  

(a)  Intent. It is expected that, in most cases, a general district will appropriately regulate site-specific 
impact of permitted use and structures on surrounding areas, however conditional zoning districts 
provide for those situations where a particular use, properly planned, may be appropriate for a 
particular site, but where the underlying general district has insufficient standards to mitigate the site-
specific impact on surrounding area.  

(b)  Use permitted. Any use may be considered for a conditional zoning district and shall be established 
on an individual basis, at the request of the property owner, according to the procedures of this 
section.  

(c)  Conditions . In establishing a conditional zoning district town council may place conditions on the 
property which set individualized standards to the site and a site plan and supporting documents 
illustrating said conditions and standards may be included in the ordinance establishing the district. 
These conditions which may be established by town council shall only be those which are necessary 
for ordinance and plan compliance and shall only address the impacts reasonably expected to be 
generated by the project. Said conditions may be proposed by town council or the applicant and 
must be mutually approved by town council and the applicant.  

(d)  Petition of request. Property may be rezoned to a conditional zoning district only in response to and 
consistent with a petition of the owners, or agents of the owners of all of the property to be included 
in the district and shall be accompanied by an petition, a statement analyzing the reasonableness of 
the proposed rezoning request by the petitioner, the established fee, and documentation as required 
by the following:  

(1)  A petition for a conditional zoning district must include a site plan and supporting information 
that specifies the actual use or uses intended for the property and any rules, regulations, and 
conditions that, in addition to all predetermined ordinance requirements, will govern the 
development and use of the property;  

(2)  A boundary survey and vicinity map showing the property's total acreage, current zoning 
classification(s), general location in relation to major streets, date and north arrow;  

(3)  Existing topography on the site and within 300 feet of the boundary of the site, and the general 
nature of the proposed topography contours shown at a maximum of five feet;  

(4)  All existing easements, reservations, rights-of-way, and any other valid restrictions on the use 
of the land;  

(5)  The number and general location of all proposed structures;  

(6)  The proposed use of all land and structures, including the number of residential units or the 
total square footage of any nonresidential development;  

(7)  All yards, buffers, screening, and landscaping and sidewalks required within the underlying 
zoning district;  

(8)  All existing and proposed points of access to public streets and the locations of proposed new 
streets;  

(9)  Delineation of areas within the floodplain;  

(10)  Proposed number and location of the signs;  

(11)  Proposed phasing, if any, and the approximate completion time for the project;  

(12)  Traffic, parking, and circulation plans, showing the proposed location and arrangement of 
parking spaces and ingress and egress to adjacent streets, existing and proposed;  

(13)  Photographs of buildings on properties within 200 feet of the subject property establishing the 
scale of the buildings within the proposed project with those surrounding;  

(14)  Information on the height of all proposed structures;  

81



(15)  Exterior features of all of the proposed development including but not limited to construction 
and finishing materials;  

(16)  Any supporting text and all documents presented shall constitute part of the petition.  

(e)  Approval procedures for initial CZD. Except as specifically modified by this section, the procedures 
to be followed by the town council in reviewing, granting, or denying any petition for a conditional 
zoning district shall be the same as those established for general use district zoning petitions under 
N.C.G.S. Ch. 160A, Art. 19. The following procedures shall also apply for the approval of conditional 
zoning districts:  

(1)  Initial consideration by town council. Petitions for conditional zoning district shall be initially 
reviewed by town council. After its initial consideration of a petition for a conditional zoning 
district, town council shall refer the request to the planning board for the full review process as 
required by state statute. Initial consideration of such petitions are intended to provide town 
council with the opportunity to express their preliminary thoughts related to the petition but shall 
not serve as a final determination on same.  

(2)  Planning and zoning review. Following an initial review by town council as set forth herein and 
in section 36-358 all conditional zoning requests shall be submitted to the town planning and 
zoning board to determine if approvals of such plans are made in consideration of identified 
relevant adopted land-use plans for the area including, but not limited to, comprehensive plans, 
strategic plans, district plans, area plans, neighborhood plans, corridor plans, and other land-
use policy documents. A statement analyzing the reasonableness of the proposed rezoning 
shall be prepared by the town planning and zoning board for each petition for a rezoning to a 
conditional zoning district and submitted to the town council for final action on the request. Due 
to the scope and complexities which may be presented by a conditional zoning district request, 
the planning and zoning board shall have up to 180 days from its first consideration to submit its 
statement of reasonableness and recommendation to town council. If the planning and zoning 
board fails to submit such statement and/or recommendation within 180 days then the request 
shall be forwarded to town council with a record of the planning and zoning board's comments 
and town council is eligible to consider the request and take final action thereon.  

(3)  Public involvement meeting. Before a public hearing may be held by the town council on a 
petition for a conditional zoning the petitioner must file in the office of the town clerk a written 
report of at least one community meeting held by the petitioner. The report shall include, among 
other things, a listing of those persons and organizations contacted about the meeting and the 
manner and date of contact, the date, time, and location of the meeting, a roster of the persons 
in attendance at the meeting, a summary of issues discussed at the meeting, and a description 
of any changes to the rezoning petition made by the petitioner as a result of the meeting. In the 
event the petitioner has not held at least one meeting pursuant to this subsection, the petitioner 
shall file a report documenting efforts that were made to arrange such a meeting and stating the 
reasons such a meeting was not held. The adequacy of a meeting held or report filed pursuant 
to this subsection shall be considered by the town council but shall not be subject to judicial 
review. Notice of such a public hearing shall be given to all the property owners within 200 feet 
of the property boundaries and in accordance with the provisions of N.C.G.S. 160A-364.  

(4)  Public hearing. As required by N.C.G.S. Ch. 160A, Art. 19, town council cannot take any action 
on a conditional zoning district request until such time as it has held a public hearing that has 
been properly noticed.  

(f)  District approval and ordinance. If a petition for a conditional zoning district is approved, the 
development and use of the property shall be governed by the ordinance establishing the conditional 
zoning district, the approved site plan for the district, and any additional approved rules, regulations, 
and conditions, all of which shall constitute the zoning regulations for the approved district. Each 
conditional zoning district will be given a special number, distinguishing such conditional zoning 
district from another zoning district. Each ordinance adopted by town council which establishes a 
conditional zoning district within the Town of Weaverville is hereby incorporated into this chapter as a 

82



separate and unique zoning district and shall be reflected on the town's zoning map. Copies of such 
ordinances shall be kept on file with the town clerk and may be reviewed upon request.  

(g)  Time limits. Time limits for the completion of the projects infrastructure and completion of 
construction shall be established on an individual basis by town council based upon the type and 
scope of development. Extensions to established time frames shall be subject to the approval of 
town council.  

(h)  Phasing of projects. Any project phasing must be reviewed and approved with the conditional 
zoning district. Phases must be shown on the site plan that is adopted in conjunction with the 
ordinance approving the conditional zoning district and the time periods related to the phasing must 
also be addressed in said ordinance.  

(i)  Guarantee of conditions. At the discretion of the town council, the council may require the property 
owner to guarantee the performance or completion of conditions included in the approved conditional 
zoning plan. Such guarantee may be in the form of:  

(1)  A surety performance bond made by a surety bonding company licensed and authorized to do 
business in the state;  

(2)  A bond of the developer with an assignment to the town of a certificate of deposit as security 
for the bond;  

(3)  A bond of the developer secured by an official bank check drawn in favor of the town and 
deposited with the town clerk;  

(4)  Cash or an irrevocable letter of credit; or  

(5)  A bank escrow account whereby the developer deposits cash, a note, a bond or some other 
instrument readily convertible into cash for a specific face value, with a federally insured 
financial institution in an account payable to the town.  

The amount of the guarantee shall be determined by town council and must be reasonable taking 
into consideration the type and scope of proposed development.  

(j)  Judicial review. Conditional zoning district decisions under this section are legislative decisions that 
are presumed valid if there is a reasonable basis for the decision.  

(k)  Future variance request. Property zoned CZD will not be able to apply for a variance on the 
approved project.  

(l)  Maintaining the zoning district. A CZD is a rezoning which represents both a text and map 
amendment and as such is maintained after the sale of the property. If the property owner wishes to 
change the approved CZD plan, all property owners within the original CZD must apply for a 
rezoning or a modification to the CZD as per section 36-84(n).  

(m)  Modifications. Minor modifications that can be approved by staff are limited to modifications that do 
not affect the property lines, do not affect the final plat and which are in substantial compliance with 
the approved plans. An extension of any time frame stated within an ordinance designating a 
conditional zoning district must be approved by town council but shall otherwise be considered a 
minor modification. All other modifications must be approved by town council and are subject to the 
procedures set out in section 36-84(n).  

(n)  Approval procedures for modifications of a CZD. Except for minor modifications that can be 
approved by staff or town council as provided in section 36-84(m), the procedures to be followed in 
reviewing, granting or denying any requested modification to the approved site plan or the CZD 
ordinance shall be the same as those established for approval of an initial CZD except that a public 
involvement meeting is not required. Staff is required to notify the mayor and town council of any 
modifications that staff has approved or denied.  

(o)  Final plat approval process. All water, sewer, stormwater infrastructure, and all street, sidewalk, and 
similar improvements must be installed and verified as complete by the appropriate authority prior to 
final plat review. Once the required infrastructure is complete, the final plat will be reviewed by staff 

83



and the planning and zoning board for compliance with the relevant portions of the ordinance 
approving the conditional zoning district for the project. After its review the planning and zoning 
board shall submit a recommendation to town council. Town council must consider the planning and 
zoning board's findings and recommendation and, upon finding that the required infrastructure is 
complete and compliant, shall approve the final plat and authorize the recordation of same.  

Final plats must contain the following language:  

"This plat has been approved as part of a conditional zoning district and all lots shown are subject to 
all the conditions, rules and regulations governing that conditional zoning district and not subject to 
the subdivision ordinance of the Town of Weaverville. Any modification to any lot or improvement 
shown on this plat may only be accomplished as an amendment to the conditional zoning district and 
in accordance with the applicable Code provisions of the Town of Weaverville."  

(p)  Issuance of zoning permits. The zoning administrator shall not issue a zoning permit until a final plat 
has been approved and recorded.  

(q)  Noncompliance. In the event of noncompliance by a property owner or any subsequent resale or 
lease of a property for use other than that stipulated in the original CZD approval, the property owner 
would be in violation of the town zoning ordinance.  

(r)  Appeal of zoning administrator decisions concerning CZDs. Any determination made by the zoning 
administrator regarding the project and/or this conditional zoning district is appealable to the zoning 
board of adjustment. Such appeal shall be made in accordance with the procedure set forth in town 
code section 36-328(3). In addition, staff is required to notify the mayor and town council of any 
appeals related to this project and/or this conditional zoning district proceeding before the zoning 
board of adjustment so that town council has the opportunity to participate as a party to the appeal 
should it wish to do so.  

( Ord. of 8-21-2017(1) , § 1(Exh. A); Ord. of 10-15-2018(1) , § 3)  

84



85



The Town of 
Weaverville 

N O R T H   C A R O L I N A  

 

 

 

April 3, 2019 
 
Mayor Al Root and 
Weaverville Town Council 

 Re: Margaret S. Ottofey (through agent Thomas Wolfe of Saba Holding Group, LLC) 
Conditional Zoning District Application for 37 Brown Street 
Old Boy’s Dormitory – Weaver College 
Statement of Reasonableness and Recommendation 

 
Dear Mayor and Council –  

On 5 March 2019 and 2 April 2019, pursuant to Section 36-84 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, the 
Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the application for a Conditional Zoning District that was 
submitted by Thomas Wolfe of Saba Holding Group, LLC, authorized agent for property owner 
Margaret S. Ottofey, on January 31, 2019. 

This project would refurbish and renovate the old Weaver College boy’s dormitory located at 37 Brown 
Street into a 16-unit multi-unit residential building while maintaining the historic nature and aesthetics 
of the building. The property is under single ownership, is currently zoned R-2, and is bounded by 
Brown Street to the east/southeast, College Street to the northeast, and private properties to the 
north, west and southwest. A site plan is attached which contains survey data.  

The maximum number of units in this project is 16, which is consistent with the number of units that 
the table of dimensional requirements would allowed within the R-2 zoning district.  The existing 
historic building is compliant with the setback requirements for the R-2 zoning district and the building 
height is either in compliance with R-2 zoning or is allowed as an existing nonconforming structure.  

At these meetings the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the project for compliance with all of the 
items enumerated in Section 36-84(d). The Planning and Zoning Board also analyzed the project’s 
reasonableness in light of the Town’s comprehensive land use plan and other land use policies and 
found that the project is reasonable in light of the Town’s land use regulations including specifically the 
Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the stated goals and objectives in that Plan including those 
provisions which encourage a variety of housing opportunities, and consistency with the Town’s 
underlying R-2 zoning district which was designed and implemented for residential use, including a mix 
of single family and multi-family residential options. 

After careful review of this application and the materials submitted, the Planning and Zoning Board 
unanimously recommends the approval of the application for a Conditional Zoning District for the 

86



2 

 

project as reflected on the attached site plan, historic elevations, and conceptual floor plans, subject 
to the following conditions: 

1. The project is to be constructed consistent with the preliminary site plan and historic elevation 
submitted by the applicant, copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference. The height of the building may not exceed its current height which has been 
established as 40 feet at the roof ridge as measured from the front sidewalk at the front steps. 
It is recognized that a fire escape must be constructed exterior to the existing building. A rear 
entrance from the parking area must be provided with related improvements to facilitate 
access to the building from the parking areas located at the rear and side of the building. 

2. The maximum number of units allowed is 16.  
3. The floor plans that are attached hereto are conceptual in nature and are allowed to be 

changed as long as the number of units does not exceed 16. Sitting areas, mailrooms, laundry 
facilities, storage areas, and other uses which support the residential units are allowed as long 
as they are housed within the existing building or garage area. Commercial uses, such as 
restaurants and shops are not allowed on the property.  

4. The exterior of the main building must be maintained in such a manner as is consistent with the 
historic aesthetics of the building as shown on the original elevation submitted with the 
application and attached hereto, including but not limited to the original façade and old 
brickwork. The exterior of the garage building must be repaired with a masonry stucco finish. 

5. Sidewalks are not required within the project or along Brown Street or College Street.  
6. All driveways/streets within the project shall be private. Said private driveways/streets shall be 

constructed to Weaverville’s driveway/street standards, except that the historic horseshoe 
driveway in the front of the building off of Brown Street is not required to meet those 
standards. The covenants, conditions and restrictions applicable to this project, if any, must 
include language stating that the streets are private and part of the common area of the 
project, and as such will be maintained through the assessments for common expenses.  

7. A minimum of 32 off-street parking spaces, with a minimum size of 9 feet by 18 feet, must be 
provided and must be constructed and maintained in an all-weather condition regardless of 
surface materials used.  

8. One freestanding sign at the entrance of the project is allowed but such sign must not be larger 
than 50 square feet of surface area per side of the sign, for a maximum aggregate of 100 square 
feet of surface area, and must comply with the other standards contained in Article VIII of 
Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances.  

9. Any and all outdoor lighting that is to be installed must comply with Town Code Section 36-26, 
except as specifically provided in this paragraph. All outdoor lighting on the property shall be 
mounted on posts that are no more than 16 feet tall. Blocking, shielding and aiming of all 
outdoor lighting shall be used to minimize light trespass on to adjoining residential properties.  
The outdoor lighting plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit 
application. 

87



3 

 

10. Landscaping must comply with Article VI of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances. A 
landscaping plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit 
application. 

11. Grading must comply with Article XV of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances. A grading 
plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit application. 
Compliance with Buncombe County sedimentation and erosion control standards is also 
required. 

12. Landscape buffers or privacy fences or walls between the property and adjoining properties are 
not required but are allowed. 

13. Construction related vehicles must be parked on the property and not on the public streets or 
the shoulders of those public streets. All dirt, mud, construction materials, or other debris 
deposited on the public streets as a result of construction activities must be removed by the 
contractor or owner on a daily basis, pursuant to Code Section 22-48. 

14.  All construction must be completed within 24 months of the issuance of the first permit 
allowing work to begin on the property. Upon request of the owner/developer, Town Council 
may, in its sole discretion, grant such extension as Town Council deems appropriate under the 
circumstances. 

15. Section 36-84 shall continue to govern the project including, but not limited, to those provisions 
regarding issuance of zoning permits, modifications, appeals, and final plat approval. 

The height of the existing building had not been measured at the time that the Planning and Zoning 
Board took action on the recommendation. This information is to be provided by the property owner 
or her agent and should be included in paragraph 1 of the conditions prior to Town Council adoption. 

While the unit density of the project (16 units) is consistent with the number of units allowed under 
the table of dimensional requirements, a concern was shared by one of the Planning and Zoning Board 
members related to the density that is proposed for this project. 

Whether the main driveways/streets are to be constructed with pervious (gravel) or impervious 
(pavement) material has yet to be determined. Some members of the Planning and Zoning Board 
indicated a preference for an impervious or paved surface in order to reduce the possibility of erosion 
and washing of the driveways/streets and parking spaces and possible impact on the public streets and 
related safety issues. The property owner is likely to employ engineers that will provide 
recommendations on the surface material for the driveways/streets and a grading plan must be 
submitted with a zoning permit application.  

To support the condition stated in paragraph 4 concerning sidewalks, it is noted that sidewalks are not 
required for projects that do not involve new construction. As this project is a renovation project, 
sidewalks would normally not be required. In addition, the existing residential neighborhood in which 
the project is located does not have sidewalks and sidewalks along the Brown Street and/or College 
Street frontage of the property would not be in character with the existing neighborhood, including the 
subdivision known as Lakeside Meadows which lies to the south of the property and does not have 

88



4 

 

sidewalks. The closest sidewalk to the project is located approximately 500 feet north at the 
intersection of College Street and Lakeshore Drive. 

To support the condition stated in paragraph 11 concerning buffering and fencing, it is noted that 
buffers between adjoining properties is not required by any residential use within the R-1, R-2 or R-3 
zoning districts. 

A traffic analysis was not conducted as Town staff determined that the peak hour trips would not 
trigger the requirement stated in Town Code Section 36-25.    

Under Town Code Section 36-84(i) Town Council has the discretion to require a performance guarantee 
to guarantee the completion of the conditions approved with the conditional zoning district and to 
determine the amount of such guarantee should Town Council wish to require one.  

It is also noted that a public involvement meeting required by Sec. 36-84(e)(3) has not yet been 
scheduled. Town Council is reminded that it cannot hold its public hearing on the application until such 
public involvement meeting has been held.  

While recognizing that it is outside of the scope of the Planning and Zoning Board’s review of the 
application, a suggestion was made that any historical artifacts found within the existing building might 
be of interest to the Dry Ridge Museum and the agent of the owner seemed interested in donating 
such materials, if found, to the Dry Ridge Museum. 

Please let me know if you need anything further from us on this matter. 

Sincerely, 

 
 
 
Doug Theroux 
Planning and Zoning Board Chairman 
 
cc: James Eller, Town Planner 
 Selena Coffey, Town Manager 
 Jennifer Jackson, Town Attorney 
 Thomas Wolfe, Saba Holding Group, LLC 

Doug Theroux

89



90



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, April 15, 2019 

Subject: Planning Department Report for the First Quarter of 2019 

Presenter:   Planning Director 

Attachments: Planning Department Report – Q1 2019 

Description: 

Attached you will find a report reflective of permits issued in January, February and March 
2019 and a description of Planning and Zoning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustment 
activity during the same timeframe. 

Additionally you will find an ordinance reflective of a recent zoning text amendment 
enacted by Buncombe County which permits with special requirements (our permitted 
with standards) the placement of HUD labeled manufactured homes within the County’s R-
1, R-2 and BDM zoning districts. Manufactured homes are now permitted by right within 
the County’s R-LD, R-3, EMP and OU zoning districts and permitted with special 
requirements within the aforementioned R-1, R-2 and BDM districts. As illustrated by the 
attached GIS map, manufactured homes with HUD labels are now permitted in some 
fashion on a vast majority of properties along the periphery of the Town which were 
formally housed within the Town’s ETJ. 

Action Requested: 

None 

 

91



 

Planning Department Report – Q1, 2019 
 

Total Zoning Permits Issued: 33 
 
Residential: 
Single family dwellings: 10 Internal upfit or accessory structure: 18  
Multifamily dwellings: 0 
 
Commercial: 
New Commercial: 0  Internal upfit or accessory structure: 5  
 
Sign Permits: 4 (Carolina Blinds, Great Clips, H&R Block, McDonalds) 

 
Planning and Zoning Board Activity: 
 
January: The Board considered and offered a favorable recommendation to Town Council related to 
the method via which certain multifamily residential uses are permitted; The Board considered and 
offered a favorable recommendation to Town Council on an initial zoning of R-2 for a project on 
Wheeler Road which Town Council was considering for annexation. 
 
February: The Planning and Zoning Board participated in a joint meeting with Town Council related to 
the desired role of the Board and the update of the Town’s comprehensive land use plan. 
 
March: The Board considered and offered a favorable recommendation to Town Council related to a 
proposed rezoning from C-2 to R-3 of five parcels of land located adjacent to Red Cole Drive; The 
Board conducted a conversation which continued to the April meeting of the Board related to a 
proposed conditional zoning district at 37 Brown Street. 
 

 
Zoning Board of Adjustment Activity: 
 
January: The Board considered an application for an amendment to an existing special use permit 
which governs the property at 140 Weaver Boulevard where Ingles is located. The Board found in 
favor of the application which called for the enclosure of the garden center for an additional 
commercial tenant permitted within the underlying C-2 Zoning District. 
 

92



PAGE 1 OF 8 

ORDINANCE NO. 19-04-07

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 78, ARTICLE VI OF THE BUNCOMBE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF BUNCOMBE COUNTY 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-340, the County may adopt a zoning ordinance to 
regulate development within its territorial jurisdiction; 

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2009, the Buncombe County Commissioners enacted Buncombe County 
Ordinance No. 09-12-01 which established a comprehensive zoning plan for the 
properties located in Buncombe County outside of the boundaries of incorporated 
municipalities and their zoning jurisdictions;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-323, the County may amend its zoning ordinance after 
giving proper public notice and holding a public hearing; 

WHEREAS, the Buncombe County Board of Commissioners has initiated an amendment to the Zoning 
Ordinance of Buncombe County, North Carolina to permit the placement of 
manufactured homes, with standards, in the R-1 Residential, R-2 Residential, and 
Beaverdam Zoning Districts (ZPH2018-00048). 

WHEREAS,  in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Buncombe County Zoning Ordinance, 
the Planning Board met to consider the proposed amendments and has recommended in 
a 6-2 vote on January 28, 2019, that the proposed amendments are consistent with the 
Buncombe County Comprehensive Land Use Plan and updates thereto, and are 
reasonable and in the public interest, and further recommended that the Board of 
Commissioners adopt the proposed amendments; 

WHEREAS, this Board has reviewed these written recommendations of the Buncombe County 
Planning Board; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes and with the provisions set forth in 
Division 8 of Chapter 78, Article VI of the Buncombe County Code of Ordinances , the 
Board of Commissioners duly advertised and held a public hearing to consider the 
proposed amendment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BUNCOMBE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS THAT: 

Section 1. This Board hereby finds and concludes as follows pertaining to the requested 
amendment to the Zoning Ordinance: 

a. Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-340(b)(1) the Buncombe County Board of
Commissioners hereby approves and adopts the following Plan Consistency
Statement for amendments to the text of the Zoning Ordinance of Buncombe

93



PAGE 2 OF 8 

County, North Carolina, to allow manufactured homes on individual lots in the R-1 
Residential, R-2 Residential, and BDM Beaverdam Zoning Districts.  The board finds 
the following: 

b. The proposed amendments (ZPH2018-00048) are consistent with the Buncombe
County Comprehensive Land Use Plan, 2013 Update (adopted September 12, 2013),
Section 5: Other Planning Efforts. Pages 49 through 52, and Section 6: Issues and
Recommendations. Page 75. Specifically, the proposed amendments expand housing
choice options and create new potential for affordable housing, promotes home
ownership while also supporting quality rental development, ensures the availability
of a diverse housing stock, and allows manufactured homes to be placed in a more
flexible way while respecting the character of neighborhoods.

c. The proposed amendment(s) would not be detrimental to the owners, adjacent
neighbors, and surrounding community as it meets a number of goals as identified in
the Buncombe County Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update.  Therefore, the text
amendments would be reasonable and in the public interest.

Section 2. That this Board does hereby approve the proposed text amendments to permit the 
placement of manufactured homes, with standards, in the R-1 Residential, R-2 
Residential, and Beaverdam Zoning Districts(ZPH2018-00048), which amendments are 
depicted in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof; 

Section 3. That the Zoning Administrator is hereby authorized to amend the Zoning Ordinance of 
Buncombe County to reflect said change as set forth in Section 2 of this Ordinance; 

Section 4. That if any section, subsection, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, held 
to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
ordinance;  

Section 5. That all ordinances and clauses of ordinances in conflict herewith be and are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict; and 

Section 6. This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

94



PAGE 3 OF 8 

Read, approved and adopted this the 2nd day of April, 2019. 

 

ATTEST       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE   
        COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

 

___________________________   BY______________________________ 

Lamar Joyner, Clerk     Brownie Newman, Chairman 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

___________________________ 

County Attorney  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

95

u00122
Brownie Newman

u00122
Lamar Joyner

u00122
Heather Hockaday



PAGE 4 OF 8 

EXHIBIT A: APPROVED AMENDMENTS 
 
NOTE: APPROVED, NEW TEXT IS UNDERLINED. 

 
 

Chapter 78, Code of Ordinances, Buncombe County 
The Zoning Ordinance of Buncombe County 

Sec. 78-581. Definitions. 
 

Manufactured home, HUD-labeled means a manufactured home bearing the manufacturer’s 
label certifying that the home has been inspected in accordance with the requirements of the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development and is constructed in conformance with the Federal 
Manufactured Home Construction and Safety Standards in effect on the date of manufacture. 
The Certification Label (also known as a “HUD tag”) is a metal plate that is affixed to the outside of the 
manufactured home.  Title 24 Code of Federal Regulations § 3280.11(b) states, “The label shall be 
approximately 2 in. by 4 in. in size and shall be permanently attached to the manufactured home by 
means of 4 blind rivets, drive screws, or other means that render it difficult to remove without 
defacing it. It shall be etched on 0.32 in. thick aluminum plate. The label number shall be etched or 
stamped with a 3 letter designation which identifies the production inspection primary inspection 
agency and which the Secretary shall assign. Each label shall be marked with a 6 digit number which 
the label supplier shall furnish..." All manufactured homes built after June 15, 1976 are required to 
have one or more label(s) attached to them. 
 

Skirting, manufactured home means a solid, opaque, continuous and unbroken, non-structural 
enclosure of a foundation crawl space, attached to the structure and extending from the bottom of the 
structure to the ground. The term “skirting” is synonymous with the term “underpinning.”  
 
Sec. 78-641. Permitted uses.  
 

(a) Permitted use table. Uses are permitted in the various zoning districts pursuant to Table 1.  
 

Table 1 – Permitted Use Table  

Uses 

P = Permitted  
C = Allowed as Conditional Use  
SR = Permitted with Special Requirements  
Blank Space = Not Permitted  
R-LD  R-1  R-2  R-3  NS  CS  EMP  PS  CR  AI  BDM  OU  

HUD-labeled 
manufactured 
homes-
Residential  

P SR SR P   P    SR P 

 
 
 
 
 

96

https://www.ibts.org/what-we-do/manufactured-homes/


PAGE 5 OF 8 

Sec. 78-642. Dimensional requirements. 
 

Footnote 5--The dimensional requirements for HUD-labeled manufactured homes (not 
including manufactured homes in manufactured home parks) are further described in section 
78-678(b)(5). 

 
Footnote 65--The Minimum Lot Size Requirements listed in Table 2 above shall not apply 

to lots created for the provision of infrastructure and/or utilities only; cemetery lots or burial 
plots; or lots to be permanently dedicated as open space or common area.  
 

Footnotes 76--98: Applicable to Beaverdam Low-Density Residential District (BDM) Only  
 

Et seq. 
 

Footnote 76--Beaverdam Only Development standards: 
 

Et seq. 
 
Footnote 87--Beaverdam Only 
 

Et seq. 
 
Footnote 98--Beaverdam Only 

 
 Et seq. 

 
Sec. 78-644. Steep Slope/High Elevation Overlay District 
 

Et seq. 
 

(c) Permitted uses. Uses are permitted in the High Elevation/Steep Slope Overlay District 
pursuant to the following table. All uses not listed are not allowed.  

 
(d) Conditional uses. All conditional uses shall be administered in accordance with Division VI of 
this chapter.  
 
(e) Special Requirements. Uses are permitted in the High Elevation/Steep Slope Overlay District 
pursuant to Sec. 78-678. All uses not listed are not allowed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

97



PAGE 6 OF 8 

Steep Slope/High Elevation Overlay Permitted Use Table  

Uses 

P = Permitted  
C = Allowed as Conditional Use  
SR = Permitted with Special Requirements  
Blank Space = Not Permitted  
R-LD  R-1  R-2  R-3  NS  CS  EMP  PS  CR  AI  BDM  OU  

HUD-labeled 
manufactured 
homes-
Residential  

P SR SR P   P    SR P 

 
Sec. 78-645. Protected Ridge Overlay District 
 

Et seq. 
 

(c) Permitted uses. Uses are permitted in the Protected Ridge Overlay District pursuant to the 
following table. All uses not listed are not allowed.  

 
(d) Conditional uses. All conditional uses shall be administered in accordance with Division VI of 
this chapter.  

 
(e) Special Requirements. Uses are permitted in the Protected Ridge Overlay District pursuant 
to Sec. 78-678. All uses not listed are not allowed. 

 
Protected Ridge Overlay Permitted Use Table  

Uses 

P = Permitted  
C = Allowed as Conditional Use  
SR = Permitted with Special Requirements  
Blank Space = Not Permitted  
R-LD  R-1  R-2  R-3  NS  CS  EMP  PS  CR  AI  BDM  OU  

HUD-labeled 
manufactured 
homes-
Residential  

P SR SR P   P    SR P 

 
 
Sec. 78-678. Uses by right subject to special requirements and conditional use standards. 
 

(a) Uses by right, subject to special requirements (SR). Uses by right, subject to special 
requirements (SR) are uses permitted by right, provided that the specific standards set forth in 
this section are met. The specified standards are intended to ensure these uses fit the intent of 
the districts within which they are permitted, and that these uses are compatible with other 
development permitted within the specified zoning districts.  
 

Et seq. 
 

98



PAGE 7 OF 8 

(5)  HUD-Labeled Manufactured Homes-Residential. Standards for HUD-Labeled 
Manufactured Homes in the R-1, R-2 and BDM zoning districts (not including 
manufactured homes in manufactured home parks) shall be as follows: 

 
a. The standards set forth herein shall apply to manufactured homes which meet the 

following criteria:  
 
1. Manufactured homes which are renovated at a cost which exceeds 50% of the 

market value of the structure; and,  
 

2. Manufactured homes which are replaced in their entirety on pre-existing 
manufactured home lots or spaces; and,  

 
3. Manufactured homes which are placed upon existing and newly created vacant 

lots or spaces. 
 

4. “Market value” shall be determined by the Administrator based upon the most 
recent tax assessment, appraisal, or actual sale value. 

 
b. Standards: 

 
1. Skirting: 

 
(a) Manufactured housing shall include skirting.  

 
(b) Permissible skirting materials shall be limited to stone, brick, or 

architectural or rusticated block. Other materials may be permitted by the 
Administrator on a case-by-case basis. 
 

(c) Wood, vinyl, metal, and foam skirting is prohibited, except that such 
materials may be permitted on a case-by-case basis in order to comply with 
Buncombe County Code, Chapter 34, Article II. Flood Damage Prevention 
Ordinance.  
 

(d) Skirting may include openings for dryer vents and combustion air inlets, 
and openings for the purposes of access and ventilation. Such openings 
shall be covered for their full height and width with a perforated corrosion 
and weather-resistant covering that is designed to prevent the entry of 
rodents. 
 

(e) Skirting and vents shall comply with all applicable requirements of North 
Carolina Building Code and Buncombe County Code, Chapter 34, Article II. 
Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance. 

 

99



PAGE 8 OF 8 

2. Foundations: 
 
(a) Manufactured homes shall be placed upon permanent foundations.  

 
(b) Wheels, tongues, and motor vehicular signals shall be removed. 

 
3. Dimensional Requirements: 

 
(a) Except as otherwise provided below, manufactured homes and 

manufactured home spaces shall conform to the dimensional requirements 
of the district in which the development is located as shown in section 78-
642, Table 2. Dimensional Requirements, and the subsequent footnotes 
thereof. 
 

(b) Manufactured homes in the aforementioned zoning districts shall be multi-
sectional (“double-wide,” “triple-wide,” et seq.). Single sectional (“single-
wide”) manufactured homes are prohibited.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

100



Bu
nc

om
be

 C
ou

nty

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 U

SG
S,

 In
ter

ma
p, 

IN
CR

EM
EN

T P
, N

RC
an

,
Es

ri J
ap

an
, M

ET
I, E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
 E

sri
 Ko

rea
, E

sri
 (T

ha
ila

nd
),

Ap
ril 

9, 
20

19
0

0.6
1.2

0.3
mi

0
1

2
0.5

km

1:3
6,1

12

  

101



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: April 15, 2019 

Subject: Departmental Quarterly Report: Finance 

Presenter:  Town Finance Director 

Attachments:  Quarterly Report – 3rd Quarter FY 2019 

Description: 

Attached please find the quarterly report, with charts summarizing Revenues and Expenditures 

as of 3/31/19. 

Council Action Requested: 

No action requested. 

102



 $
-

 $
50

0,
00

0

 $
1,

00
0,

00
0

 $
1,

50
0,

00
0

 $
2,

00
0,

00
0

 $
2,

50
0,

00
0

 $
3,

00
0,

00
0

 $
3,

50
0,

00
0

Ad
 V

al
or

em
 T

ax
DM

V 
Ta

x
U

til
ite

s T
ax

Sa
le

s T
ax

Bu
nc

 C
o 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n

AB
C 

St
or

e
W

at
er

 R
ev

en
ue

Re
ve

nu
es

3/
31

/2
01

9
3/

31
/2

01
8

Bu
dg

et
 F

Y1
9

10
3



 $
-

 $
50

0,
00

0

 $
1,

00
0,

00
0

 $
1,

50
0,

00
0

 $
2,

00
0,

00
0

 $
2,

50
0,

00
0

Go
ve

rn
in

g
Bo

dy
Ad

m
in

Pl
an

ni
ng

Po
lic

e
Fi

re
St

re
et

s
Sa

ni
ta

tio
n

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
W

at
er

 A
dm

in
W

at
er

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
W

at
er

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s b

y 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t

3/
31

/2
01

9
Bu

dg
et

 F
Y1

9

10
4



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 01/01/2019 TO 03/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

REVENUE:
010-004-300-04010  PRIOR YEAR TAX REVEN 2,500.00 9918.357.09
010-004-300-04012  PRIOR YEAR INTEREST & 200.00 1000.000.00
010-004-300-04020  AD VALOREM TAX REV 3,008,164.00 -33,089,530.11850,916.53
010-004-300-04025  DMV TAX REVENUE 250,000.00 23193,699.6359,679.10
010-004-300-04030  TAX PENALTIES & INTE 4,000.00 -385,507.494,415.22
010-004-300-05010  UTILITIES  TAX 450,000.00 20358,253.22119,460.92
010-004-300-05040  BEER & WINE TAX 16,000.00 98330.000.00
010-004-300-05050  POWELL BILL DISTRIBU 106,000.00 1104,951.920.00
010-004-300-05060  LOCAL GOVT SALES TA 1,250,000.00 181,021,965.43361,862.48
010-004-300-06010  BUN CNTY FIRE PROTEC 1,387,000.00 151,181,696.90387,352.84
010-004-300-06040  ABC STORE DISTRIBUTI 90,000.00 -50134,747.5183,584.90
010-004-300-06045  ABC STORE - ALCOHOL 8,419.43 177,026.953,050.94
010-004-300-06050  ABC STORE - POLICE DE 8,614.75 425,019.262,179.25
010-004-300-07060  FIRE DEPT GRANTS 455.38 0455.380.00
010-004-300-09015  CELL TOWER REVENUE 16,000.00 -316,416.300.00
010-004-300-09019  STATE DISTRIBUTION - 1,328.13 01,328.130.00
010-004-300-09020  MISCELLANEOUS REVEN 7,500.00 -229,183.645,849.07
010-004-300-09026  CONTRIBUTIONS FIRE D 240.00 -21290.00150.00
010-004-300-09028  COPS FOR KIDS 29,769.05 2323,014.5070.00
010-004-300-09030  INTEREST EARNED 84,000.00 3951,385.09271.23
010-004-300-09031  INTEREST EARNED POW 300.00 -3531,357.630.00
010-004-300-09040  PLANNING & ZONING FE 25,000.00 4314,175.154,496.00
010-004-300-09045  FIRE INSPECTION FEES 300.00 -133700.00500.00
010-004-300-09050  SALE OF PROPERTY 5,000.00 -15712,830.020.00
010-004-310-09900  APPROPRIATED FUND B 824,774.34 1000.000.00
030-004-300-08010  WATER REVENUE 1,845,000.00 231,412,811.04447,404.67
030-004-300-08020  MISCELLANEOUS REVEN 17,000.00 4110,094.403,377.75
030-004-300-08030  WATER TAPS 35,000.00 1828,725.009,975.00
030-004-300-08040  SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT 130,000.00 -37178,212.0085,932.00
030-004-300-08060  FEES FOR MSD COLLECT 50,000.00 2637,051.969,679.20
030-004-300-09030  INTEREST EARNED 38,000.00 1000.000.00
030-004-310-09900  APPROPRIATED FUND B 144,128.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL REVENUE 2,440,214.19 7,900,777.01 9,834,693.08 20

2,440,214.19 7,900,777.01 9,834,693.08

411 GOVERNING BODY
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-411-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 78,814.00 2658,553.7820,953.84
010-410-411-18100  FICA 6,029.00 264,479.591,603.06
010-410-411-18200  RETIREMENT 4,679.00 253,501.401,281.00
010-410-411-18500  EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE P 10,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 46,700.00 2236,566.583,917.08
010-410-411-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 1,000.00 55453.70216.96

TONYA Page 1 9:19:28AM04/10/2019
fl141r07

105



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 01/01/2019 TO 03/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-410-411-28000  CONSERVATION BOARD 1,500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 7,700.00 10024.750.00
010-410-411-32500  POSTAGE 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 8,000.00 97,256.583,089.68
010-410-411-39100  ADVERTISING 2,000.00 371,252.08900.96
010-410-411-39200  NEWS LETTERS 1,600.00 58666.50666.50
010-410-411-39300  PRINTING 1,000.00 60400.000.00
010-410-411-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 200.00 -97393.88325.00
010-410-411-39510  COMMUNITY PROMOTIO 65,500.00 3840,694.7310,319.97
010-410-411-40450  INSURANCE 600.00 45329.090.00
010-410-411-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 2,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 18,940.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 43,274.05 154,572.66 256,762.00 40

-256,762.00-154,572.66-43,274.05

-43,274.05 -154,572.66 -256,762.00

412 ADMINISTRATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-412-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 317,697.00 28227,584.7977,996.07
010-410-412-18100  FICA 24,304.00 3016,984.375,846.20
010-410-412-18200  RETIREMENT 25,193.00 2918,003.296,140.82
010-410-412-18210  401-K MATCH 19,062.00 3512,345.964,157.51
010-410-412-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 40,506.00 5119,962.515,546.27
010-410-412-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 7,337.00 543,340.420.00
010-410-412-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 64,820.00 7218,012.536,450.85
010-410-412-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 1,000.00 83165.4559.00
010-410-412-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 13,000.00 811,919.662,116.26
010-410-412-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 15,000.00 655,255.982,743.44
010-410-412-32100  TELEPHONE 12,765.00 1410,947.304,363.36
010-410-412-32500  POSTAGE 3,000.00 132,600.96417.98
010-410-412-33100  UTILITIES 5,000.00 303,511.391,568.16
010-410-412-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 20,000.00 853,090.801,362.06
010-410-412-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 6,000.00 612,337.08625.82
010-410-412-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-412-39100  ADVERTISING 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-412-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 2,000.00 72562.50220.00
010-410-412-39600  BANK SERVICE CHARGE 6,600.00 374,182.85883.42
010-410-412-39650  BANK CARD FEES 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-412-39800  ESC REIMBURSEMENT 8,000.00 861,136.760.00
010-410-412-40450  INSURANCE 7,500.00 37,261.34500.00
010-410-412-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 7,000.00 543,239.48712.74
010-410-412-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 53,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 121,709.96 372,445.42 661,284.00 44

TONYA Page 2 9:19:28AM04/10/2019
fl141r07

106



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 01/01/2019 TO 03/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

-661,284.00-372,445.42-121,709.96

-121,709.96 -372,445.42 -661,284.00

413 PLANNING
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-413-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 65,670.00 2450,091.6817,699.64
010-410-413-18100  FICA 5,024.00 233,847.821,359.68
010-410-413-18200  RETIREMENT 5,208.00 243,972.261,403.58
010-410-413-18210  401-K MATCH 3,940.00 243,005.491,061.97
010-410-413-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 7,237.00 314,969.881,657.80
010-410-413-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 3,000.00 451,640.08863.97
010-410-413-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 500.00 71145.0419.91
010-410-413-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 1,000.00 24759.7010.50
010-410-413-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00 75620.020.00
010-410-413-32100  TELEPHONE 2,170.00 12,150.451,265.39
010-410-413-32500  POSTAGE 3,000.00 93201.00201.00
010-410-413-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-413-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 500.00 8766.450.00
010-410-413-39100  ADVERTISING 3,000.00 91256.180.00
010-410-413-40450  INSURANCE 500.00 18409.650.00
010-410-413-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 3,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 25,543.44 72,135.70 106,749.00 32

-106,749.00-72,135.70-25,543.44

-25,543.44 -72,135.70 -106,749.00

431 POLICE
EXPENDITURE:

010-430-431-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 873,018.22 24663,388.38252,623.00
010-430-431-12500  SEPARATION ALLOWAN 52,131.86 2638,325.1516,102.30
010-430-431-18100  FICA 70,774.19 2850,991.1319,627.58
010-430-431-18200  RETIREMENT 74,206.29 2555,826.0821,145.30
010-430-431-18210  401-K MATCH 52,380.91 3733,189.2811,304.14
010-430-431-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 145,427.00 4185,212.4128,142.76
010-430-431-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 14,061.00 349,290.883,096.96
010-430-431-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 44,000.00 2234,491.696,916.57
010-430-431-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 43,149.93 4623,360.806,755.65
010-430-431-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 6,600.00 354,266.782,563.30
010-430-431-26200  CRIME PREVENTION 2,500.00 87318.95318.95
010-430-431-26250  DRUG EDUCATION & PR 38.13 1000.000.00
010-430-431-26400  ALCOHOL EDUCATION & 8,419.43 95421.24277.61
010-430-431-26450  ABC LAW ENFORCEMEN 8,614.75 831,487.501,487.50
010-430-431-26608  COPS FOR KIDS 29,769.05 1824,552.093,338.88
010-430-431-26900  UNIFORMS 11,500.00 219,112.293,417.29

TONYA Page 3 9:19:28AM04/10/2019
fl141r07

107



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 01/01/2019 TO 03/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-430-431-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,500.00 04,519.231,494.90
010-430-431-32100  TELEPHONE 16,540.00 1414,255.746,916.97
010-430-431-32500  POSTAGE 350.00 7875.9622.09
010-430-431-33100  UTILITIES 4,800.00 283,433.321,480.71
010-430-431-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 5,500.00 711,599.81734.00
010-430-431-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 2,600.00 301,826.29851.52
010-430-431-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 18,000.00 3911,059.827,408.27
010-430-431-40450  INSURANCE 59,000.00 1450,637.220.00
010-430-431-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 75,330.21 2457,057.072,121.59
010-430-431-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 95,000.00 2472,298.816,049.88

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 404,197.72 1,250,997.92 1,718,210.97 27

-1,718,210.97-1,250,997.92-404,197.72

-404,197.72 -1,250,997.92 -1,718,210.97

434 FIRE
EXPENDITURE:

010-430-434-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 1,200,944.38 23922,857.38338,307.35
010-430-434-12110  OVERTIME 56,954.00 1647,773.8211,799.78
010-430-434-12800  RELIEF PAY 70,000.00 3644,742.0016,638.00
010-430-434-18100  FICA 101,549.00 2773,694.2226,644.14
010-430-434-18200  RETIREMENT 97,452.00 2374,754.3026,798.51
010-430-434-18210  401-K MATCH 72,029.00 4142,475.1915,748.41
010-430-434-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 209,237.00 38129,240.7643,789.12
010-430-434-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 7,031.00 344,645.441,548.48
010-430-434-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 7,700.00 136,732.942,658.39
010-430-434-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 18,000.00 -719,319.454,798.08
010-430-434-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 10,000.00 415,879.943,155.84
010-430-434-26100  MEDICAL VACINATIONS 7,500.00 -17,555.006,010.00
010-430-434-26150  PREVENTATION SUPPLI 6,000.00 284,339.54670.30
010-430-434-26260  MEDICAL EQUIP & SUPP 6,000.00 463,214.831,380.26
010-430-434-26600  CONTRIBUTORY EXPEN 594.15 1000.000.00
010-430-434-26900  UNIFORMS 11,000.00 297,835.921,547.88
010-430-434-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 10,000.00 168,441.031,964.37
010-430-434-32100  TELEPHONE 20,635.00 2315,944.246,892.91
010-430-434-33100  UTILITIES 15,000.00 3310,039.884,523.17
010-430-434-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 15,000.00 2012,008.838,986.92
010-430-434-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 20,000.00 539,365.156,465.55
010-430-434-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 30,000.00 3818,493.563,782.97
010-430-434-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 8,500.00 286,096.531,257.93
010-430-434-40450  INSURANCE 90,522.00 1279,697.400.00
010-430-434-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 54,000.00 5623,863.5113,836.52

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 549,204.88 1,579,010.86 2,145,647.53 26

-2,145,647.53-1,579,010.86-549,204.88

TONYA Page 4 9:19:28AM04/10/2019
fl141r07

108



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 01/01/2019 TO 03/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

-549,204.88 -1,579,010.86 -2,145,647.53

451 STREETS
EXPENDITURE:

010-450-451-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 151,557.00 26112,080.3637,766.96
010-450-451-18100  FICA 11,594.00 317,965.352,676.69
010-450-451-18200  RETIREMENT 12,018.00 268,888.002,994.94
010-450-451-18210  401-K MATCH 9,093.00 365,779.541,946.59
010-450-451-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 20,310.00 1317,709.494,970.97
010-450-451-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 5,400.00 363,470.83350.98
010-450-451-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 25,600.00 844,224.004,224.00
010-450-451-19900  CONTRACT WORK 30,500.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 7,000.00 483,619.24720.29
010-450-451-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 27,000.00 4814,036.673,804.28
010-450-451-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 2,300.00 511,129.39384.32
010-450-451-26900  UNIFORMS 1,600.00 47847.20749.85
010-450-451-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-32100  TELEPHONE 4,615.00 581,960.261,095.66
010-450-451-33100  UTILITIES 58,000.00 4034,663.0415,421.31
010-450-451-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 2,200.00 281,588.90285.00
010-450-451-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 4,200.00 14,167.4177.50
010-450-451-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 2,900.00 222,273.11370.65
010-450-451-40450  INSURANCE 9,900.00 217,822.300.00
010-450-451-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 2,400.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 257,900.00 978,452.505,850.00
010-450-451-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 7,333.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 83,689.99 240,677.59 655,920.00 63

-655,920.00-240,677.59-83,689.99

-83,689.99 -240,677.59 -655,920.00

459 POWELL BILL
EXPENDITURE:

010-450-459-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 8,816.00 226,853.522,356.53
010-450-459-18100  FICA 674.00 25502.90172.90
010-450-459-18200  RETIREMENT 699.00 22543.49186.87
010-450-459-18210  401-K MATCH 529.00 58219.7776.58
010-450-459-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 1,422.00 50708.03199.92
010-450-459-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 4,000.00 1000.000.00
010-450-459-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-450-459-19900  CONTRACT WORK 1,500.00 1000.000.00
010-450-459-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 100,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 2,992.80 8,827.71 118,640.00 93

-118,640.00-8,827.71-2,992.80

TONYA Page 5 9:19:28AM04/10/2019
fl141r07

109



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 01/01/2019 TO 03/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

-2,992.80 -8,827.71 -118,640.00

471 SANITATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-470-471-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 286,855.00 40171,548.6156,345.20
010-470-471-18100  FICA 21,944.00 4312,414.374,111.17
010-470-471-18200  RETIREMENT 22,748.00 4013,603.954,468.25
010-470-471-18210  401-K MATCH 17,211.00 567,494.202,583.57
010-470-471-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 52,613.00 4130,924.0610,269.99
010-470-471-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 3,500.00 133,045.20774.24
010-470-471-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 2,000.00 57851.75434.49
010-470-471-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 31,000.00 1626,157.50660.00
010-470-471-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 19,000.00 2214,751.094,332.38
010-470-471-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 8,500.00 583,529.504,000.32
010-470-471-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 3,000.00 341,990.5893.51
010-470-471-26900  UNIFORMS 4,600.00 432,636.241,499.70
010-470-471-33100  UTILITIES 4,000.00 103,586.201,817.34
010-470-471-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 2,300.00 74590.20475.20
010-470-471-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 10,500.00 643,783.991,396.49
010-470-471-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 14,000.00 1911,301.383,988.02
010-470-471-40100  TIPPING FEES 75,000.00 4540,878.2214,621.76
010-470-471-40450  INSURANCE 34,568.00 1828,188.520.00
010-470-471-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 402,993.71179.00
010-470-471-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 7,333.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 112,050.63 380,269.27 625,672.00 39

-625,672.00-380,269.27-112,050.63

-112,050.63 -380,269.27 -625,672.00

612 RECREATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-600-612-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 115,952.00 2389,443.0229,746.14
010-600-612-18100  FICA 8,870.00 256,648.132,207.66
010-600-612-18200  RETIREMENT 9,195.00 237,092.972,358.90
010-600-612-18210  401-K MATCH 6,957.00 374,415.341,463.01
010-600-612-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 10,178.00 -2512,741.224,067.91
010-600-612-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 1,500.00 -1083,125.501,008.74
010-600-612-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 29,000.00 1000.000.00
010-600-612-19900  CONTRACT WORK 9,600.00 603,821.292,872.50
010-600-612-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 3,000.00 611,165.7988.80
010-600-612-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 20,600.00 4112,243.947,904.35
010-600-612-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 1,800.00 68579.3940.53
010-600-612-26900  UNIFORMS 1,600.00 56697.23599.88
010-600-612-33100  UTILITIES 12,500.00 387,756.012,987.60
010-600-612-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 1,200.00 9385.000.00

TONYA Page 6 9:19:28AM04/10/2019
fl141r07

110



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 01/01/2019 TO 03/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-600-612-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 2,400.00 251,803.350.00
010-600-612-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,300.00 9741.2730.00
010-600-612-40450  INSURANCE 4,500.00 24,403.240.00
010-600-612-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 1,800.00 59732.930.00
010-600-612-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 610,000.00 9437,664.0437,664.04
010-600-612-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 36,333.00 3125,174.425,255.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 98,295.06 219,634.08 888,285.00 75

-888,285.00-219,634.08-98,295.06

-98,295.06 -219,634.08 -888,285.00

711 WATER ADMINISTRATION
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-711-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 131,343.00 2696,744.0032,691.87
030-700-711-18100  FICA 10,048.00 277,317.032,482.39
030-700-711-18200  RETIREMENT 10,415.00 277,642.362,562.97
030-700-711-18210  401-K MATCH 7,881.00 355,091.961,708.68
030-700-711-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 25,039.00 619,776.952,832.31
030-700-711-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 34,000.00 6611,511.872,858.91
030-700-711-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 2,000.00 76477.41116.56
030-700-711-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 3,500.00 641,266.48220.65
030-700-711-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 550.00 -1931,610.000.00
030-700-711-26900  UNIFORMS 400.00 1000.000.00
030-700-711-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00 561,104.30810.10
030-700-711-32100  TELEPHONE 5,775.00 304,037.781,777.63
030-700-711-32500  POSTAGE 12,000.00 397,325.183,636.95
030-700-711-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,500.00 9837.1310.00
030-700-711-40450  INSURANCE 11,000.00 149,507.070.00
030-700-711-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 1,800.00 86249.69204.90

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 51,913.92 163,699.21 259,751.00 37

-259,751.00-163,699.21-51,913.92

-51,913.92 -163,699.21 -259,751.00

712 PRODUCTION
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-712-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 290,576.00 28208,125.0173,434.25
030-700-712-18100  FICA 22,229.00 2915,789.615,571.90
030-700-712-18200  RETIREMENT 23,043.00 2916,412.105,823.34
030-700-712-18210  401-K MATCH 17,435.00 744,600.821,661.23
030-700-712-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 40,837.00 3526,539.398,679.66
030-700-712-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 10,531.00 277,690.642,322.72
030-700-712-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 21,000.00 1717,408.275,008.46
030-700-712-19600  WATER TESTING / MAIN 13,000.00 536,116.862,668.47
030-700-712-19900  CONTRACT WORK 10,000.00 336,749.402,359.90

TONYA Page 7 9:19:28AM04/10/2019
fl141r07

111



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 01/01/2019 TO 03/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

030-700-712-20000  CHEMICALS 58,000.00 3636,907.1114,500.61
030-700-712-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 5,500.00 462,946.83529.73
030-700-712-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 11,500.00 416,738.321,295.78
030-700-712-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 2,000.00 91,823.4337.90
030-700-712-26900  UNIFORMS 2,300.00 42,211.46666.40
030-700-712-27001  LAB SUPPLIES 18,000.00 3711,269.805,714.26
030-700-712-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 7,000.00 374,434.391,763.35
030-700-712-32100  TELEPHONE 5,100.00 333,429.451,454.68
030-700-712-33100  UTILITIES 98,000.00 2177,063.2336,103.85
030-700-712-34000  SLUDGE REMOVAL 30,000.00 699,189.604,324.80
030-700-712-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 65,500.00 1654,912.000.00
030-700-712-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 16,000.00 95771.83414.85
030-700-712-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 3,500.00 94207.9470.95
030-700-712-40450  INSURANCE 11,500.00 179,507.070.00
030-700-712-40900  WATER PURCHASES 6,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-712-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 3,800.00 9944.790.00
030-700-712-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 188,500.00 8724,991.9824,991.98

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 199,399.07 555,881.33 980,851.00 43

-980,851.00-555,881.33-199,399.07

-199,399.07 -555,881.33 -980,851.00

713 MAINTENANCE
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-713-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 304,473.00 26226,271.3676,175.97
030-700-713-18100  FICA 23,292.00 3116,140.135,416.74
030-700-713-18200  RETIREMENT 24,145.00 2617,871.996,040.77
030-700-713-18210  401-K MATCH 18,268.00 656,462.002,195.30
030-700-713-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 45,079.00 2533,935.9910,173.48
030-700-713-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 8,000.00 -28,131.022,934.17
030-700-713-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 3,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-19900  CONTRACT WORK 3,500.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 9,900.00 396,066.561,661.34
030-700-713-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 44,000.00 3927,009.826,281.67
030-700-713-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 3,000.00 621,128.6940.53
030-700-713-26900  UNIFORMS 3,500.00 601,394.461,199.76
030-700-713-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,800.00 88470.000.00
030-700-713-32100  TELEPHONE 6,000.00 75,568.112,083.06
030-700-713-33100  UTILITIES 31,000.00 4516,951.538,671.67
030-700-713-33300  UTILITIES FOR PUMP ST 0.00 00.00541.25
030-700-713-33500  UTILITIES/BUILDING 0.00 00.00-127.99
030-700-713-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 2,800.00 76667.50396.00
030-700-713-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 8,800.00 90868.8622.63
030-700-713-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 6,900.00 533,247.661,150.51
030-700-713-39410  EQUIPMENTAL RENTAL 1,200.00 63440.000.00
030-700-713-40450  INSURANCE 11,000.00 149,507.070.00

TONYA Page 8 9:19:28AM04/10/2019
fl141r07

112



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 01/01/2019 TO 03/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

030-700-713-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 771,158.951,158.95
030-700-713-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 183,600.00 7742,602.500.00
030-700-713-50310  REPAIRS TO RESERVOIR 6,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-50320  WATER SYSTEM IMPROV 3,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 40,000.00 5418,315.0018,315.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 144,330.81 444,209.20 799,257.00 44

-799,257.00-444,209.20-144,330.81

-144,330.81 -444,209.20 -799,257.00

910 DEBT SERVICE
EXPENDITURE:

010-910-910-91061  LOAN PAYMENT-FIRE T 53,541.00 053,540.720.00
010-910-910-91062  LOAN PAYMENT - FIRE T 74,707.00 074,707.480.00
010-910-910-91063  LOAN PAYMENT - FIRE S 250,145.00 50125,627.050.00
030-910-910-60030  RESERVE FOR BOND PA 204,270.00 8922,134.700.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 0.00 276,009.95 582,663.00 53

-582,663.00-276,009.950.00

0.00 -276,009.95 -582,663.00

999 OTHER FUNDING USES
EXPENDITURE:

010-005-999-90000  CONTINGENCY 20,000.00 1000.000.00
030-005-999-90000  CONTINGENCY 15,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 100

-35,000.000.000.00

0.00 0.00 -35,000.00

TONYA Page 9 9:19:28AM04/10/2019
fl141r07

113


	February 25 2019-Town Council Meeting Minutes - with jj revisions
	March 18 2019 -Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes - reviewed by jj
	March 18 2019-Town Council Meeting Minutes - with jj revisions
	Proclamation Honoring the Lions Club
	Monthly Tax Report for 4-8-19
	CLUP Project - Staff Update - April 2019
	Road Closures Agenda Item 4-15-2019
	Audit Contract for FY 2019
	Resolution Authorizing Credit Card Payments
	Town Managers Report
	Personnel Related Policies
	Interlocal Agreement - Fire Departments and First Due Size-Up Program - April 2019
	Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning for 135 Monticello
	Setting Public Hearing for Proposed 37 Brown Conditional Zoning District
	Planning Department Report - Q1, 2019
	Finance Quarterly Report 3-31-19
	Budget Message Agenda Item FINAL.pdf
	FY2020 Budget Message 4-11-2019
	Copy of Proposed Budget 2019-2020
	Summary





